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The registrant will incorporate by reference information required in response to Part III, Items 10-14 in its definitive
Proxy Statement for its annual meeting of shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days after December 31, 2011.
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Explanatory Note

This amendment (the “Amendment”) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, of
Invesco Ltd. (the “Original Form 10-K”) is being filed for the purposes of revising Note 21 - Guarantor Condensed
Consolidating Financial Statements (the “Guarantor Footnote”) - in order to conform to the requirements of Rule 3-10 of
Regulation S-X, including:
grossing up the intercompany balances among the Guarantors, non-Guarantors, Issuer and Parent entities and
(i)presenting them as current and non-current intercompany receivables and payables on the Guarantor Condensed
Consolidating Balance Sheets,
(i) grossing up the intercompany revenue and expense sharing transactions on the Guarantor Condensed
Consolidating Statements of Income, and
(iii)correcting the classification of certain intercompany loan, capital, and dividend activity as financing cash flows on
the Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows.

These corrections of amounts within the Guarantor Footnote concern presentation and categorization of intercompany
balances and transactions. Consequently, none of the corrections affect Invesco Ltd.'s primary consolidated financial
statements, including the Consolidated Balance Sheets, Statements of Income and Statements of Cash Flows.

The primary purpose of the Guarantor Footnote is to provide financial information to the holders of the company's
publicly-traded debt instruments. The corrections to the presentation of this footnote do not affect compliance with the
company's liquidity or debt covenants and do not result in a default under any of the terms of our debt instruments.
This Amendment solely modifies Part II, Item 8, and Part IV, Items 15 and 16 of the Original Form 10-K. All other
Items of the Original Form 10-K are unaffected by this Amendment and such Items have not been included in this
Amendment. Information included in this Amendment is stated as of December 31, 2011, and does not reflect any
subsequent events occurring after the filing of the Original Form 10-K.
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SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report, the documents incorporated by reference herein, other public filings and oral and written statements by

us and our management, may include statements that constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the
United States securities laws. These statements are based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management and on
information available to us at the time such statements are made. Forward-looking statements include information

concerning possible or assumed future results of our operations, expenses, earnings, liquidity, cash flows and capital
expenditures, industry or market conditions, assets under management, acquisition activities and the effect of

completed acquisitions, debt levels and our ability to obtain additional financing or make payments on our debt, legal

and regulatory developments, demand for and pricing of our products and other aspects of our business or general

economic conditions. In addition, when used in this Report, the documents incorporated by reference herein or such

other documents or statements, words such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” “projects,”
“forecasts,” and future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “may,” “could,” “should,” and “would,” and any other statement thz
necessarily depends on future events, are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

99 ¢ 9 29 ¢ LT3

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of performance or other outcomes. They involve risks, uncertainties
and assumptions. Although we make such statements based on assumptions that we believe to be reasonable, there can
be no assurance that actual results will not differ materially from our expectations. We caution investors not to rely
unduly on any forward-looking statements.

The following important factors, and other factors described elsewhere in this Report or incorporated by reference into
this Report or contained in our other filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), among others,
could cause our results to differ materially from any results described in any forward-looking statements:

variations in demand for our investment products or services, including termination or non-renewal of our
investment advisory agreements;
significant changes in net asset flows into or out of the accounts we manage or declines in market value of the assets
in, or redemptions or other withdrawals from, those accounts;
enactment of adverse state, federal or foreign legislation or changes in government policy or regulation (including
accounting standards) affecting our operations, our capital requirements or the way in which our profits are taxed;
significant fluctuations in the performance of debt and equity markets worldwide;
exchange rate fluctuations, especially as against the U.S. Dollar;
the effect of economic conditions and interest rates in the U.S. or globally;
our ability to compete in the investment management business;
the effect of consolidation in the investment management business;
Yimitations or restrictions on access to distribution channels for our products;
our ability to attract and retain key personnel, including investment management professionals;
the investment performance of our investment products;
our ability to acquire and integrate other companies into our operations successfully and the extent to which we
can realize anticipated cost savings and synergies from such acquisitions;
changes in regulatory capital requirements;
our debt and the limitations imposed by our credit facility;
the effect of failures or delays in support systems or customer service functions, and other interruptions of our
operations;
the occurrence of breaches and errors in the conduct of our business, including any failure to properly safeguard
confidential and sensitive information;
the execution risk inherent in our ongoing company-wide transformational initiatives;
the effect of political or social instability in the countries in which we invest or do business;
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the effect of terrorist attacks in the countries in which we invest or do business and the escalation of hostilities that
could result therefrom;

swar and other hostilities in or involving countries in which we invest or do business; and

adverse results in litigation, including private civil litigation related to mutual fund fees and any similar potential

regulatory or other proceedings.

Other factors and assumptions not identified above were also involved in the derivation of these forward-looking
statements, and the failure of such other assumptions to be realized may also cause actual results to differ materially
from those projected. For more discussion of the risks affecting us, please refer to Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

You should consider the areas of risk described above in connection with any forward-looking statements that may be
made by us and our businesses generally. We expressly disclaim any obligation to update any of the information in

this or any other public report if any forward-looking statement later turns out to be inaccurate, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise. For all forward-looking statements, we claim the “safe harbor” provided by
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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PART II
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Annual Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31. 2011, and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31. 2011, 2010 and 2009
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2011. 2010
and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011. 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity as of and for the years ended December 31. 2011,
2010 and 2009

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Annual Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). The company's internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, management
assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control - Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, management concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011.

The company's independent auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, have issued an audit report on the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in the company's internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2011 that

have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the company's internal control over financial
reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Invesco Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Invesco Ltd. ("the Company") as of December
31,2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Invesco Ltd. at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 24, effective January 1, 2011, the Company retrospectively adopted the presentation and
disclosure requirements of Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, as
amended by ASU 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of
Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Invesco Ltd.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated February 24, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia

February 24, 2012, except for

Notes 21 and 24 as to which the date is
October 30, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Invesco Ltd.

We have audited Invesco Ltd.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Invesco Ltd.'s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Annual Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, Invesco Ltd. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Invesco Ltd. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2011, of Invesco Ltd. and our report dated February 24, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s / Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
February 24, 2012
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Invesco Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

$ in millions, except per share data

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents of consolidated investment products
Unsettled fund receivables
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable of consolidated investment products
Investments
Prepaid assets
Other current assets
Deferred tax asset, net
Assets held for policyholders
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Investments
Investments of consolidated investment products
Security deposit assets and receivables
Other non-current assets
Deferred sales commissions
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Total non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of total debt
Unsettled fund payables
Income taxes payable
Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities of consolidated investment products
Policyholder payables
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt
Long-term debt of consolidated investment products
Deferred tax liabilities, net
Security deposits payable
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (See Note 19)
Equity:

As of
December 31,
2011

7274
382.3
444 4
4244
98.5
283.7
51.2
150.0
28.7
1,243.5
3,834.1

200.8
6,629.0
81.2
17.9
40.5
312.8
1,322.8
6,907.9
15,512.9
19,347.0

215.1
439.6
59.6
841.5
175.1
1,243.5
2,974.4

1,069.6
5,512.9
274.0
81.2
297.3
7,235.0
10,209.4

December 31,
2010

740.5
636.7
5134
424.7
158.8
308.8
64.0
101.8
304
1,295.4
4,274.5

164.4
7,206.0
146.3
20.9
42.2
272.4
1,337.2
6,980.2
16,169.6
20,444.1

504.8
72.2
905.7
486.4
1,295.4
3,264.5

1,315.7
5,865.4
229.0
146.3
262.3
7,818.7
11,083.2

12



Edgar Filing: Invesco Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

Equity attributable to common shareholders:
Common shares ($0.20 par value; 1,050.0 million authorized; 490.4 million shares

issued as of December 31, 2011, and 2010) 98.1
Additional paid-in-capital 6,180.6
Treasury shares (1,280.4
Retained earnings 2,413.2
Retained earnings appropriated for investors in consolidated investment products 334.3
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax 373.3

Total equity attributable to common shareholders 8,119.1

Equity attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities 1,018.5

Total equity 9,137.6

Total liabilities and equity 19,347.0

See accompanying notes.

9

98.1

6,262.6
(991.5
1,904.4
495.5
495.5
8,264.6
1,096.3
9,360.9
20,444.1
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Invesco Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Income

$ in millions, except per share data
Operating revenues:
Investment management fees
Service and distribution fees
Performance fees
Other
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Employee compensation
Third-party distribution, service and advisory
Marketing
Property, office and technology
General and administrative
Transaction and integration
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Other income/(expense):
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Interest and dividend income
Interest income of consolidated investment products
Gains/(losses) of consolidated investment products, net
Interest expense
Interest expense of consolidated investment products
Other gains and losses, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income

(Gains)/losses attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities,

net

Net income attributable to common shareholders
Earnings per share:

- basic

- diluted

Dividends declared per share

See accompanying notes.

10

Years ended December 31,

2011

3,138.5
780.3
37.9
135.5
4,092.2

1,246.2
1,282.5
86.0
254.6
2954
294
3,194.1
898.1

30.5
11.0
307.2
(138.9
(61.8
(187.0
49.0
908.1
(286.1
622.0

107.7
729.7
$1.58

$1.57
$0.4775

2010

2,720.9
645.5
26.1
95.2
3,487.7

1,114.9
1,053.8
78.5
238.4
262.2
150.0
2,897.8
589.9

40.2
10.4
240.9
114.0
(58.6
(118.6
15.6
833.8
(197.0
636.8

(171.1
465.7
$1.01

$1.01
$0.4325

2009

2,120.2
412.6
30.0
64.5
2,627.3

950.8
737.0
65.3
212.3
166.8
10.8
2,143.0
484.3

27.0

9.8

(106.9 )
(64.5 )
7.8

357.5
(1482 )
209.3

113.2
3225
$0.77

$0.76
$0.4075

14
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Invesco Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

$ in millions

Net income

Other comprehensive income, before tax:

Currency translation differences on investments in overseas subsidiaries

Change in accumulated other comprehensive income related to employee

benefit plans

Change in accumulated other comprehensive income of equity method
investments

Change in net unrealized gains on available-for-sale investments
Adoption of guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 320

Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax

Income tax related to items of other comprehensive income:

Tax benefit (expense) on foreign currency translation adjustments

Tax benefit (expense) on comprehensive income related to employee
benefit plans

Tax benefit (expense) on change in net unrealized gains on
available-for-sale investments

Total income tax benefit (expense) related to items of other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in
consolidated entities

Comprehensive income attributable to common shareholders

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31,

2011
622.0
(48.8
(42.4

(7.2
(12.3

)
)

)
)

(110.7 )

0.5
9.3

1.8

11.6

(99.1
5229

84.6
607.5

)

2010
636.8
77.3
18.7

29
9.9

108.8

(6.2
0.8

(7.0

101.8
738.6

2009
209.3
488.3
(15.1

14.6
(1.5
486.3
0.7

) 4.1
) (1.7

) 3.1

489.4
698.7

(165.8 ) 113.2

572.8

811.9

)

)

15
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Invesco Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

$ in millions 2011 2010 2009
Operating activities:
Net income 622.0 636.8 209.3
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization and depreciation 117.4 96.7 77.6
Share-based compensation expense 115.1 117.8 90.8
Gains on disposal of property, equipment, and software, net (5.8 ) — 1.2
Purchase of trading investments (10,548.6) (7,093.1) (41.9
Proceeds from sale of trading investments 10,537.6  7,032.7 13.1
Other gains and losses, net (49.0 ) (156 ) (7.8
Losses/(gains) of consolidated investment products, net 138.9 (114.0 ) 106.9
Tax benefit from share-based compensation 77.8 63.4 423
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (14.7 ) (148 ) (94
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (30.5 ) 402 ) (27.0
Dividends from unconsolidated affiliates 21.3 26.0 28.3
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in cash held by consolidated investment products 264.2 (336.2 ) 45.0
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 2134 (223.3 ) (4684
(Decrease)/increase in payables (4943 ) 243.0 305.1
Net cash provided by operating activities 964.8 379.2 362.7
Investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (107.0 ) (89.6 ) (39.5
Disposal of property and equipment 12.6 — 6.8
Purchase of available-for-sale investments 31.4 ) 339 ) (156
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments 60.2 64.7 18.8
Purchase of investments by consolidated investment products (2,991.4 ) (2,367.7) (44.1
Proceeds from sale of investments by consolidated investment products 3,479.0 2,866.3 52.1
Purchase of other investments (1434 ) (694 ) (88.5
Proceeds from sale of other investments 64.6 42.4 31.8
Returns of capital and distributions from equity method investments 36.6 25.3 10.0
Acquisitions of businesses (14.9 ) (749.6 ) —
Acquisition earn-out payments (16.8 ) 263 ) (342
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 348.1 (337.8 ) (1024
Financing activities:
Issuance of new shares — — 441.8
Proceeds from exercises of share options 12.4 19.6 80.0
Purchases of treasury shares 436.5 ) (1922 ) —
Dividends paid (220.9 ) (1979 ) (168.9
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 14.7 14.8 94
Capital invested into consolidated investment products 37.2 24.3 7.2
Capital distributed by consolidated investment products (1724 ) 97.2 ) (52.1
Repayments of debt of consolidated investment products (5133 ) (2073 ) —
Net (repayments)/borrowings under credit facility (31.0 ) 570.0 (12.0
Repayments of senior notes — — (397.2
Acquisition of remaining noncontrolling interest in subsidiary — — (8.9

16
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Acquisition of interest in consolidated investment products (12.3 ) — —

Net cash used by financing activities (1,322.1 ) (65.9 ) (100.7 )
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (9.2 ) 245 ) 159.6
Foreign exchange movement on cash and cash equivalents 3.9 ) 3.0 17.2

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 740.5 762.0 585.2
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 727.4 740.5 762.0
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Interest paid (53.5 ) (50.6 ) (604 )
Interest received 14.5 7.7 10.5
Taxes paid (199.8 ) (172.3 ) (88.4 )

See accompanying notes.
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Invesco Ltd.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Equity Attributable to Common Shareholders

Retained
Earnings otal Equity
Appropriate@ccumulate% . Attributable
. . for Other qu?ty 0
S Additional Treasury Retained Attributable .Total
$ in millions Commggigl_l}%r_ecsa Sih Earni Investors Comprehensive Noncontrolhﬁ% it
pitshares arnings . o} . uity
in Income, Common Interests in
Consolidataakt of tax Consolidated
Shareholders. . .
Investment Entltles
Products
January 1, 2011 98.1 6,262.6 9915 ) 1,904.4 495.5 495.5 8,264.6 1,096.3 9,360.9
Net income —_ — — 729.7 — — 729.7 (107.7 ) 622.0
Other
comprehensive (122.2 ) (1222 ) 23.1 (99.1 )
income
Total
comprehensive 607.5 (84.6 ) 5229
income
Net loss reclassified
to appropriated —_ — — — (1699 ) — (169.9 ) 169.9 —
retained earnings
Currency translation
differences on
investments in
overseas
subsidiaries T o o 8.7 o 8.7 8.7 ) —
reclassified to
appropriated
retained earnings
Change in
noncontrolling
interests in —_ — — — — — — (1544 ) (1544 )
consolidated
entities, net
Dividends — - — (2209 ) — — (2209 ) — (2209 )
Employee share
plans:
Share-based — 1151 — — — — 1151 — 115.1
compensation
Vested shares — (202.7 ) 202.7 — — — — — —
Exercise of options — 9.1 ) 21.5 — — — 12.4 — 12.4
Tax impact of
share-based — 14.7 — — — — 14.7 — 14.7
payment
Purchase of shares —  — (513.1 ) — — — (5131 ) — (513.1 )
December 31, 2011 98.1 6,180.6 (1,280.4) 2,413.2 334.3 373.3 8,119.1 1,018.5 9,137.6
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Equity Attributable to Common Shareholders

Retained
Earnings otal Equity
Appropriatetbcumulate% . Attributable
for Other quity 0
. Commdulditional Treasury Retained Attributable . Total
$ in millions . . . Investors Comprehensive Noncontrolli .
SharesPaid-in-Capitihares Earnings . 0 . ]llfqulty
in Income, Common Interests in
Consolidatatbt of tax Consolidated
Shareholder% ..
Investment ntities
Products
January 1, 2010 91.9 5,6884 (8924) 1,6314 — 393.6 6,912.9 707.9 7,620.8
Adoption of
guidance now L . .
encompassed in ASC 5.2 274.3 5.2 ) 2743 274.3
Topic 810
January 1, 2010, as
. 91.9 5,688.4 (892.4) 1,636.6 274.3 388.4 7,187.2 707.9 7,895.1
adjusted
Net income — - — 465.7 — — 465.7 171.1 636.8
Other comprehensive 107.1 107.1 (53 ) 101.8
income
Total comprehensive 5728 1658 738.6
income
Net income
reclassified to . o . 771 o 771 77.1 ) —

appropriated retained
earnings

Currency translation
differences on
investments in

overseas subsidiaries —  — — — 5.3 ) — (5.3 ) 5.3 —
reclassified to

appropriated retained

earnings

Change in

noncontrolling

interests in —_ - — — — — — (69.2 ) (69.2 )
consolidated entities,

net

Business 62  563.0 S — 1494 — 7186  363.6 1,082.2
Combinations

Dividends —  — — (1979 ) — — (1979 ) — (1979 )
Employee share

plans:

Share-based — 1178 — — — 178 — 11738
compensation

Vested shares — (94.5 ) 94.5 — — — — — —
Exercise of options — (26.9 ) 46.5 — — — 19.6 — 19.6

Tax impact of
share-based payment 14.8 o _ — - 14.8 — 14.8
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Purchase of shares —  — (240.1) — — — (240.1 ) — (240.1 )
December 31,2010 98.1 6,262.6 (991.5) 1,904.4 495.5 495.5 8,264.6 1,096.3 9,360.9

See accompanying notes.
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$ in millions

January 1, 2009
Net income/(loss),

including gains and losses

attributable to

noncontrolling interests

Other comprehensive
income
Total comprehensive
income

Adoption of guidance now
encompassed in ASC Topic—

320

Change in noncontrolling
interests in consolidated

entities, net

Issuance of new shares
Dividends

Employee share plans:

Share-based compensation —

Vested shares
Exercise of options

Tax impact of share-based

payment
Modification of
share-based payment
awards

Purchase of shares

Acquisition of remaining
noncontrolling interest in

subsidiary
December 31, 2009

See accompanying notes.
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Commedexdditional
Shares Paid-in-Capit8hares

5,352.6

435.2

90.8
(127.6
(515

9.4

(13.0

(7.5

5,688.4

Treasury Retained

Earnings

(1,128.9) 1,476.3

— 3225
— 1.5

— (168.9 )
127.6 —

131.8 —

229 ) —

(8924 ) 1,6314

Equity Attributable to Common Shareholders

Equity
AccumulatedTOtgf1 Attributable
Other Equity 0

.Attributable . Total

Comprehenswg Noncontrolli uit
Income/(Loss Interests in quity
net of tax Shareholder Sl(Elor?s‘ohdated

ntities
(95.8 ) 5,689.5 906.7 6,596.2

— 322.5

489.4 489.4

— 811.9

— 441.8
— (168.9

— 90.8
— 80.3
— 9.4
— (13.0
— (22.9
— (1.5

393.6 6,912.9

(1132 ) 209.3

— 489.4

(1132 ) 6987

— 1.5

(84.2 ) (842 )

— 441.8
— (168.9 )

— 90.8

— 80.3
— 94
— 13.0 )
— 229 )
(1.4 ) B89 )

707.9 7,620.8
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Invesco Ltd.
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Corporate Information

Invesco Ltd. (Parent) and all of its consolidated entities (collectively, the company or Invesco) provide retail,
institutional and high-net-worth clients with an array of global investment management capabilities. The company
operates globally and its sole business is investment management.

Basis of Accounting and Consolidation

In the opinion of management, the Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustments, consisting of normal
recurring accruals, which are necessary for the fair presentation of the financial condition and results of operations for
the interim periods presented. All significant intercompany transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are
eliminated upon consolidation.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and consolidate the
financial statements of the Parent, all of its controlled subsidiaries, any variable interest entities (VIEs) required to be
consolidated, and any non-VIE general partnership investments where the company is deemed to have control. A VIE
is an entity that does not have sufficient equity to finance its operations without additional subordinated financial
support, or an entity for which the risks and rewards of ownership are not directly linked to voting interests. Control is
deemed to be present when the Parent holds a majority voting interest or otherwise has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of the subsidiary or VIE so as to obtain the benefits from its activities. The company
provides investment management services to, and has transactions with, various private equity funds, real estate funds,
fund-of-funds, collateralized loan obligations (CLOs), and other investment products sponsored by the company for
the investment of client assets in the normal course of business. The company serves as the investment manager,
making day-to-day investment decisions concerning the assets of these products. Certain of these entities are
considered to be VIEs.

The company follows the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810, “Consolidation,” when
accounting for VIEs, including Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-10, “Amendments for Certain
Investment Funds” (ASU 2010-10), detailed in “Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted and Pending
Accounting Pronouncements” below. For all VIE investment products with the exception of CLOs, if the company is
deemed to have a variable interest in, and to have the majority of rewards/risks of ownership associated with, these
entities, then the company is deemed to be their primary beneficiary and is required to consolidate these entities. For
VIE CLOs, if the company is deemed to have the power to direct the activities of the CLO that most significantly
impact the CLO's economic performance, and the obligation to absorb losses/right to receive benefits from the CLO
that could potentially be significant to the CLO, then the company is deemed to be the CLO's primary beneficiary and
is required to consolidate the CLO. Investment products that are consolidated are referred to as “Consolidated
Investment Products” in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

As discussed in “Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted and Pending Accounting Pronouncements” below, the
company adopted new guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810 on January 1, 2010, with prospective

application. All of the investments held and notes issued by consolidated investment products are presented at fair
value in the company's Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2011, and 2010, and interest income and

expense of consolidated CLOs are presented as other income/(expense) in the company's Consolidated Income
Statements for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. The surplus of consolidated CLO assets over
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consolidated CLO liabilities is reflected in the company's Consolidated Balance Sheets as retained earnings
appropriated for investors in consolidated investment products. Current period gains/(losses) attributable to investors
in consolidated CLOs are included in (gains)/losses attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities in
the Consolidated Statements of Income and in the retained earnings appropriated for investors in consolidated
investment products in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, as they are considered noncontrolling interests of the
company. See Note 20, “Consolidated Investment Products,” for additional details.

The company also consolidates certain private equity and real estate funds that are structured as partnerships in which
the company is the general partner receiving a management and/or performance fee. Private equity investments made
by the underlying funds consist of direct investments in, or fund investments in other private equity funds that hold
direct investments in, equity or debt securities in operating companies that are generally not initially publicly traded.
Private equity funds are considered investment companies and are therefore accounted for under ASC Topic 946,
“Financial Services - Investment Companies.” The company has retained the specialized industry accounting principles
of these investment products in its Consolidated Financial Statements. See Note 20, “Consolidated Investment
Products,” for additional details.

16
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Non-VIE general partnership investments are deemed to be controlled by the company and are consolidated under a
voting interest entity (VOE) model, unless the limited partners have the substantive ability to remove the general
partner without cause based upon a simple majority vote or can otherwise dissolve the partnership, or unless the
limited partners have substantive participating rights over decision-making.

If the company determines that it does not control the private equity and real estate partnership funds in which it has
invested, the equity method of accounting is used to account for the company's investment in these entities. The equity
method of accounting is also used to account for investments in joint ventures and noncontrolled subsidiaries in which
the company's ownership is between 20 and 50 percent. Equity investments are carried initially at cost (subsequently
adjusted to recognize the company's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition) and are
included in investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The proportionate share of income or loss is included in
equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates in the Consolidated Statements of Income, and the proportionate share
of other comprehensive income or loss is included in accumulated other comprehensive income in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. If the company determines that it does not control CLOs in which it has invested, the company
accounts for its investments as available-for-sale investments.

The financial statements have been prepared primarily on the historical cost basis; however, certain items are
presented using other bases such as fair value, where such treatment is required or voluntarily elected. The financial
statements of subsidiaries, with the exception of certain consolidated investment products as discussed above, are
prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent and use consistent accounting policies, which, where applicable,
have been adjusted to U.S. GAAP from local generally accepted accounting principles or reporting regulations. The
financial information of the consolidated CLOs is included in the company's consolidated financial statements on a
one-month lag. The private equity and real estate funds are consolidated using the most recent financial information
available, which in some cases is on a quarter-lag. Noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities and retained
earnings appropriated for investors in consolidated investment products represent the interests in certain entities
consolidated by the company either because the company has control over the entity or has determined that it is the
primary beneficiary, but of which the company does not own all of the entity's equity.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities. The primary estimates relate to
investment and debt valuation for consolidated investment products, goodwill and intangible impairment, and taxes.
Use of available information and application of judgment are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in
the future could differ from such estimates and the differences may be material to the financial statements.

Reclassifications

Earlier this year, the company changed its presentation of marketing support expenses from marketing expenses to
third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income.
Marketing support expenses are payments made to distributors of certain of the company’s retail products over and
above the 12b-1 distribution payments passed through to the distributors from the funds. The nature of these costs is
distribution-related; accordingly, the reclassification serves to more appropriately reflect them as such. Additionally,
the presentation of certain other prior period reported amounts has been reclassified to be consistent with the current
presentation. Such reclassifications had no impact on total operating expenses, net income, or equity attributable to
common shareholders. The impact to previously reported third-party distribution, service and advisory and marketing
expenses is illustrated below.

For the year ended
December 31,
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$ in millions

Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses, as previously reported
Reclassification

Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses, as reclassified
Marketing expenses, as previously reported

Reclassification

Marketing expenses, as reclassified

17

2010
972.7
81.1
1,053.8
159.6
(81.1
78.5

2009
693.4
43.6
737.0
108.9
(43.6
65.3
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Acquisition Accounting

In accordance with ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinations” (ASC Topic 805), any excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired attributable to the company is recognized as
goodwill. With certain exceptions, 100% of the fair values of assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and noncontrolling
interests is recognized in acquisitions of less than 100% controlling interest when the acquisition constitutes a change
in control of the acquired entity. Additionally, when partial ownership in an acquiree is obtained and it is determined
that the company controls the acquiree, the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interests are
recognized and consolidated at 100% of their fair values at that date, regardless of the percentage ownership in the
acquiree. As goodwill is calculated as a residual, all goodwill of the acquired business, not just the company's share, is
recognized under this “full-goodwill” approach. Noncontrolling interests are stated at the noncontrolling shareholder's
proportion of the pre-acquisition carrying values of the acquired net assets. The results of entities acquired or sold
during the year are included from or to the date control changes.

Contingent consideration obligations that are elements of consideration transferred are recognized as of the acquisition
date as part of the fair value transferred in exchange for the acquired business. Acquisition-related costs incurred in
connection with a business combination shall be expensed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks, in hand and short-term investments with a maturity upon
acquisition of three months or less. Also included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2011, is $2.9 million
(December 31, 2010: $2.4 million ) in cash to facilitate trust operations and customer transactions in the company's
affiliated funds. Cash and cash equivalents of consolidated investment products are not available for general use by
the company.

Cash balances may not be readily assessable to the Parent due to capital adequacy requirements of certain of our
subsidiaries. These and other similar provisions of applicable law may have the effect of limiting withdrawals of
capital, repayment of intercompany loans and payment of dividends by such entities. A sub-group of Invesco
subsidiaries, including all of our regulated EU subsidiaries, is subject to consolidated capital requirements under
applicable European Union (EU) directives, and capital is maintained within this sub-group to satisfy these
regulations. These requirements mandate the retention of liquid resources in those jurisdictions, which we meet in part
by holding cash and cash equivalents. This retained cash can be used for general business purposes in the European
sub-group or in the countries where it is located. Due to the capital restrictions, the ability to transfer cash between
certain jurisdictions may be limited. In addition, transfers of cash between international jurisdictions may have
adverse tax consequences that may substantially limit such activity. At December 31, 2011, the European sub-group
had cash and cash equivalent balances of $440.0 million (December 31, 2010: $456.2 million), much of which is used
to satisfy these regulatory requirements. The company is in compliance with all regulatory minimum net capital
requirements. The total amount of non-U.S. cash and cash equivalents was $551.8 million at December 31, 2011
(December 31, 2010: $550.1 million).

In addition, the company is required to hold cash deposits with clearing organizations or to otherwise segregate cash
to maintain compliance with federal and other regulations in connection with its unit investment trust (UIT) broker
dealer entity. At December 31, 2011 these cash deposits totaled $11.2 million (year ended December 31, 2010: $14.9

million).

Unsettled Fund Receivables and Payables
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The company records unsettled fund receivables from underlying fund investors in certain fund products outside the
U.S. when these investors place unsettled investments into the funds. Additionally, the company records unsettled
fund receivables from certain non-U.S. funds during the settlement period when underlying fund investors redeem
their holdings. Settlement periods for both receivables from underlying investors and funds is generally less than four
days. Additionally, in its capacity as sponsor of UITs which arose subsequent to the acquisition of Morgan Stanley's
retail asset management business on June 1, 2010 (discussed in Note 2, “Business Combination and Integration,”) the
company records receivables from brokers, dealers, and clearing organizations for unsettled sell trades of securities
and UITs in addition to receivables from customers for unsettled sell trades of UITs. The company also records
payables to brokers, dealers, and clearing organization for unsettled buy trades of securities and UITs in addition to
payables to customers for unsettled sell trades of securities and UITs. The presentation of the unsettled fund
receivables and substantially offsetting payables at trade date reflects the legal relationship between the underlying
investor and the company.

Accounts Receivable and Payable
Accounts receivable and payable are recorded at their original invoice amounts. Accounts receivable are also recorded
less any allowance for uncollectible amounts. Accounts receivable include fees receivable from affiliated funds and

accounts.

18

28



Edgar Filing: Invesco Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

Investments

Investments in equity securities that have readily determinable fair values and investments in debt securities are
classified as either trading or available-for-sale. Investments in debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity
investments if the company has the intent and ability to hold the investments until maturity. Trading securities are
securities bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term. Additionally, purchases and
sales of trading investments are classified as operating activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows based
on the nature and purpose for which the securities were acquired. Available-for-sale securities are those neither
classified as trading nor as held-to-maturity. Trading and available-for-sale investments are measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of trading investments are included in income, and gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale investments are recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income, net of tax, until the investment is sold or otherwise disposed of, or until the investment is
determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is included in income. The specific identification method is used to determine the realized gain or loss on
securities sold or otherwise disposed. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost, taking into
account any discounts or premiums.

Investments in joint ventures, non-controlled subsidiaries and certain investment products that are not consolidated
under a VIE or VOE model are investments over which the company has significant influence but not control and are
accounted for using the equity method, where the investment is initially recorded at cost and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognize the company's share of the after-tax profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. Investments in joint ventures are investments jointly controlled by the company and external parties.
Investments in joint ventures are also accounted for using the equity method to reflect the substance and economic
reality of the company's interest in jointly controlled entities. Equity investments are included in investments on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The proportionate share of income or loss is included in equity in earnings of
unconsolidated affiliates in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Fair value is determined using a valuation hierarchy (discussed in Note 3, “Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities,”)
generally by reference to an active trading market, using quoted closing or bid prices as of each reporting period end.
When a readily ascertainable market value does not exist for an investment, the fair value is calculated based on the
expected cash flows of its underlying net asset base, taking into account applicable discount rates and other factors.
Judgment is used to ascertain if a formerly active market has become inactive and in determining fair values when
markets have become inactive.

The company evaluates the carrying value of investments for impairment on a quarterly basis. In its impairment
analysis, the company takes into consideration numerous criteria, including the duration and extent of any decline in
fair value, the intent and ability of the company to hold the security for a period of time sufficient for a recovery in
value, recent events specific to the issuer or industry and external credit ratings and recent downgrades with respect to
issuers of debt securities held. If the decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, the carrying value of
the security is generally written down to fair value through the income statement. If the fair value of a debt security,
however, is less than its amortized cost, the decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, and the
company intends to sell the debt security or it is more likely than not that the company will be required to sell the debt
security before the recovery of its amortized cost basis, the entire difference between the investment's amortized cost
basis and its fair value is recognized as an other-than-temporary impairment through the income statement. If the
company does not intend to sell the debt security, and it is not more likely than not that the company will be required
to sell the debt security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, then the other-than-temporary impairment is
separated into two components: a) the amount representing the credit loss, which is recorded as a charge to the income
statement, and b) the amount related to all other factors, which is recognized in other comprehensive income, net of
tax.
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Assets Held for Policyholders and Policyholder Payables

One of the company's subsidiaries, Invesco Perpetual Life Limited, is an insurance entity that was established to
facilitate retirement savings plans in the U.K. The entity holds assets that are managed for its clients on its balance
sheet with an equal and offsetting liability to the policyholders, which is linked to the value of the investments. The
investments are legally segregated and are generally not subject to claims that arise from any of the company's other
businesses. Investments and policyholder payables held by this business meet the definition of financial instruments
and are carried in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as separate account assets and liabilities at fair value in accordance
with ASC Topic 944, “Financial Services - Insurance.” Changes in fair value are recorded and offset to zero in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in other operating revenues. Management fees earned from policyholder
investments are accounted for as described in the company's revenue recognition accounting policy.

Security Deposit Assets and Receivables and Security Deposits Payable
As aresult of Invesco's 2010 acquisition of the Asia fund and asset management business of AIG Global Real Estate
Investment Corp. (AIG Asia Real Estate), Invesco is an asset manager of property portfolios, whereby the company

provides services such
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as leasing management, building management, building maintenance and administration activities. In order to carry
out such activities, Invesco is a party to master lease agreements with the property owners and is a party to sublease
agreements with the tenants of the properties. Under these agreements, Invesco collects the security deposits and rent
and remits the amounts, with no mark-up, to the property owners. The security deposits remitted to the property
owners and the security deposits payable to the tenants are presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at

December 31, 2011, as security deposit assets and security deposits payable, respectively. Included in security deposit
assets is $2.1 million (December 31, 2010: $41.1 million) receivable from affiliated funds, which earns interest at
TIBOR plus 0.1% (December 31, 2010: 0.1%).

Deferred Sales Commissions

Mutual fund shares sold without a sales commission at the time of purchase are commonly referred to as “B shares.” B
shares typically have an asset-based fee (12b-1 fee) that is charged to the fund over a period of years and a contingent
deferred sales charge (CDSC). The CDSC is an asset-based fee that is charged to investors that redeem B shares
during a stated period. Commissions paid at the date of sale to brokers and dealers for sales of mutual funds that have
a CDSC are capitalized and amortized over a period not to exceed the redemption period of the related fund (generally
up to six years). The deferred sales commission asset is reviewed periodically for impairment by reviewing the
recoverability of the asset based on estimated future fees to be collected.

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment includes owned property, leasehold improvements, computer hardware/software and other
equipment and is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization and any previously recorded impairment
in value. Expenditures for major additions and improvements are capitalized; minor replacements, maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Amounts incurred are presented as work-in-progress until the construction
or purchase of the property and equipment is substantially complete and ready for its intended use, which, at that
point, will begin to be depreciated or amortized. Depreciation is provided on property and equipment at rates
calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected
useful life: owned buildings over 50 years, leasehold improvements over the shorter of the lease term or useful life of
the improvement; and computers and other various equipment between three and seven years. Purchased and
internally developed software is capitalized where the related costs can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the asset will generate future economic benefits, and amortized into operating expenses on a straight-line basis over its
useful life, usually five years. The company capitalizes qualified internal and external costs incurred during the
application development stage for internally developed software in accordance with ASC Topic 350-40, “Intangibles -
Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software.” The company reevaluates the useful life determination for property and
equipment each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining
useful life. On sale or retirement, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial
statements and any related gain or loss is reflected in income.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. At each reporting date, an assessment is made
for any indication of impairment. If an indication of impairment exists, recoverability is tested by comparing the
carrying amount of the asset to the net undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from the asset. If those net
undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the carrying amount (i.e. the asset is not recoverable), the next step would be
performed, which is to determine the fair value of the asset and record an impairment charge, if any.

Intangible Assets
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Intangible assets identified on the acquisition of a business are capitalized separately from goodwill if the fair value
can be measured reliably on initial recognition (transaction date) and, if they are determined to be finite-lived, are
amortized and recorded as operating expenses on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, from two to 12 years,
which reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits are realized. Intangible assets consist primarily of mutual
fund and other client management contracts, customer relationships, distribution agreements and trade names. The
company considers its own assumptions, which require management's judgment, about renewal or extension of the
term of the arrangement, consistent with its expected use of the asset. A change in the useful life of an intangible asset
could have a significant impact on the company's amortization expense.

Where evidence exists that the underlying arrangements have a high likelihood of continued renewal at little or no
cost to the company, the intangible asset is assigned an indefinite life and reviewed for impairment on an annual basis.
The company reevaluates the useful life determination for intangible assets each reporting period to determine
whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining useful life or an indication of impairment.
Management contracts that are managed and operated on a single operating platform are reviewed in aggregate as one
unit of valuation and are considered interchangeable because investors
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may freely transfer between funds. Similarly, cash flows generated by new funds added to the operating platform are
included when determining the fair value of the intangible asset.

Definite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amount may not be recoverable (i.e. the carrying amount exceeds the sum of the fair value of the
intangible). In addition, management judgment is required to estimate the period over which definite-lived intangible
assets will contribute to the company's cash flows and the pattern in which these assets will be consumed. Intangible
assets not subject to amortization are tested for impairment annually as of October 1 or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The impairment test consists of a comparison of
the fair value of an intangible asset with its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of the intangible asset exceeds its
fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. Fair value is generally determined
using an income approach where estimated future cash flows are discounted to arrive at a single present value amount.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the identifiable net assets of businesses acquired and is recorded in the
functional currency of the acquired entity. Goodwill is recognized as an asset and is reviewed for impairment annually
as of 30 1 and between annual tests when events and circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred. The
company has determined that it has one reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing purposes, the consolidated
Invesco Ltd. single operating segment level, which is the level at which internal reporting is generated that reflects the
way that the company manages its operations and to which goodwill is naturally associated. The company evaluated
the components of its business, which are business units one level below the operating segment level, and has
determined that it has one reporting unit for purposes of goodwill impairment testing. The company's components
include Invesco Institutional, Invesco North American Retail, Invesco Perpetual, Invesco Continental Europe and
Invesco Asia Pacific. The company's operating segment represents one reporting unit because all of the components
are similar due to the common nature of products and services offered, type of clients, methods of distribution, manner
in which each component is operated, extent to which they share assets and resources, and the extent to which they
support and benefit from common product development efforts. Traditional profit and loss measures are not produced
and therefore not reviewed by component management for any of the components. Furthermore, the financial
information that is available by component is not sufficient for purposes of performing a discounted cash flow
analysis at the component level in order to test goodwill for impairment at that level. As none of the company's
components are reporting units, the company has determined that its single operating segment, investment
management, is also its single reporting unit.

The impairment test for goodwill consists of a two-step approach, which is performed at the reporting unit level. If the
carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value (the first step of the goodwill impairment test), then the
second step is performed to determine if goodwill is impaired and to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if
any. The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair value of goodwill with the carrying
amount of goodwill. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill, an impairment loss
is recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

The principal method of determining fair value of the reporting unit is an income approach where estimated future
cash flows are discounted to arrive at a single present value amount. The discount rate used is derived based on the
time value of money and the risk profile of the stream of future cash flows. Recent results and projections based on
expectations regarding revenue, expenses, capital expenditure and acquisition earn out payments produce a present
value for the reporting unit. The present value produced for the reporting unit is the fair value of the reporting unit.
This amount is reconciled to the company's market capitalization to determine an implied control premium, which is
compared to an analysis of historical control premiums experienced by peer companies over a long period of time to
assess the reasonableness of the fair value of the reporting unit.
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The company also utilizes a market approach to provide a secondary and corroborative fair value of the reporting unit
by using comparable company and transaction multiples to estimate values for our single reporting unit. Discretion
and judgment is required in determining whether the transaction data available represents information for companies
of comparable nature, scope and size. The results of the secondary market approach to provide a fair value estimate
are not combined or weighted with the results of the income approach described above but are used to provide an
additional basis to determine the reasonableness of the income approach fair value estimate.

Debt and Financing Costs

Debt issuance costs are recognized as a deferred asset under ASC Topic 835, “Interest.” After initial recognition, debt
issuance costs are measured at amortized cost. Finance charges and debt issuance costs are amortized over the term of
the debt using the effective interest method. Interest charges are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Treasury Shares
Treasury shares are valued at cost and are included as deductions from equity on the settlement date.
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, value added tax and other sales-related taxes.
Revenue is recognized when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred or services have
been provided, collectibility is reasonably assured and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue represents
management, service and distribution, performance and other fees. Revenue is generally accrued over the period for
which the service is provided.

Investment management fees are derived from providing professional services to manage client accounts and include
fees earned from retail mutual funds, unit trusts, investment companies with variable capital (ICVCs),
exchange-traded funds, investment trusts and institutional and private wealth management advisory contracts.
Investment management fees for products offered in the retail distribution channel are generally calculated as a
percentage of the daily average asset balances and therefore vary as the levels of AUM change resulting from inflows,
outflows and market movements. Investment management fees for products offered in the institutional and private
wealth management distribution channels are calculated in accordance with the underlying investment management
contracts and also vary in relation to the level of client assets managed.

Service fees are generated through fees charged to cover several types of expenses, including fund accounting fees and
other maintenance costs for mutual funds, unit trusts and ICVCs, and administrative fees earned from closed-ended
funds. Service fees also include transfer agent fees, which are fees charged to cover the expense of processing client
share purchases and redemptions, call center support and client reporting. U.S. distribution fees can include 12b-1 fees
earned from certain mutual funds to cover allowable sales and marketing expenses for those funds and also include
asset-based sales charges paid by certain mutual funds for a period of time after the sale of those funds. Distribution
fees typically vary in relation to the amount of client assets managed. Generally, retail products offered outside of the
U.S. do not generate a separate distribution fee, as the quoted management fee rate is inclusive of these services.

Performance fee revenues are generated on certain management contracts when performance hurdles are achieved.
Such fee revenues are recorded in operating revenues as of the performance measurement date, when the contractual
performance criteria have been met and when the outcome of the transaction can be measured reliably in accordance
with Method 1 of ASC Topic 605-20-S99, “Revenue Recognition - Services - SEC Materials.” Cash receipt of earned
performance fees occurs after the measurement date. The performance measurement date is defined in each contract in
which incentive and performance fee revenue agreements are in effect, and therefore we have performance fee
arrangements that include monthly, quarterly and annual measurement dates. Given the uniqueness of each
transaction, performance fee contracts are evaluated on an individual basis to determine if revenues can and should be
recognized. Performance fees are not recorded if there are any future performance contingencies. If performance
arrangements require repayment of the performance fee for failure to perform during the contractual period, then
performance fee revenues are recognized no earlier than the expiration date of these terms. Performance fees will
fluctuate from period to period and may not correlate with general market changes, since most of the fees are driven
by relative performance to the respective benchmark rather than by absolute performance.

Other revenues include fees derived primarily from transaction commissions earned upon the sale of new investments
into certain of our funds and fees earned upon the completion of transactions in our real estate and private equity asset
groups. Real estate transaction fees are derived from commissions earned through the buying and selling of properties.
Private equity transaction fees include commissions associated with the restructuring of, and fees from providing
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advice to, portfolio companies held by the funds. These transaction fees are recorded in the Consolidated Financial
Statements on the date when the transactions are legally closed. The company is the sponsor of UITs. In its capacity as
sponsor of UITs, the company earns other revenues related to transactional sales charges resulting from the sale of
UIT products and from the difference between the purchase or bid and offer price of securities temporarily held to
form new UIT products. These revenues are recorded as other revenues net of concessions to dealers who distribute
UITs to investors. Other revenues also include the revenues of consolidated investment products.

Distribution, service and advisory fees that are passed through to external parties are presented separately as expenses
in accordance with ASC Topic 605-45, “Revenue Recognition - Principal Agent Considerations.” Third-party
distribution, service and advisory expenses include periodic “renewal” commissions paid to brokers and independent
financial advisors for their continuing oversight of their clients' assets, over the time they are invested, and are
payments for the servicing of client accounts. Renewal commissions are calculated based upon a percentage of the
AUM value and apply to much of the company's non-U.S. retail operations, where they can also take the form of
management fee rebates. As discussed above, the revenues from our U.S. retail operations include 12b-1 distribution
fees, which are passed through to brokers who sell the funds as third-party distribution
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expenses. Both the revenues and the costs are dependent on the underlying AUM of the brokers' clients. Third-party
distribution expenses also include the amortization of upfront commissions paid to broker-dealers for sales of fund
shares with a contingent deferred sales charge (a charge levied to the investor for client redemption of AUM within a
certain contracted period of time). The distribution commissions are amortized over the redemption period. Also
included in third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses are sub-transfer agency fees that are paid to third
parties for processing client share purchases and redemptions, call center support and client reporting. These costs are
reimbursed by the related funds. Third-party distribution, service and advisory expenses may increase or decrease at a
rate different from the rate of change in service and distribution fee revenues due to the inclusion of distribution,
service and advisory expenses for the U.K. and Canada, where the related revenues are recorded as investment
management fee revenues, as noted above.

Interest income is accrued on interest-bearing assets.
Dividend income from investments is recognized on the ex-dividend date.
Share-Based Compensation

The company issues equity-settled share-based awards to certain employees, which are measured at fair value at the
date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed, based on the company's estimate of shares that
will eventually vest, on a straight-line or accelerated basis over the vesting period. The initial forfeiture rate applied to
most grants is 5% per year, based upon the company's historical experience with respect to employee turnover. Fair
value for the share awards representing equity interests identical to those associated with shares traded in the open
market is determined using the market price at the date of grant. Fair value is measured by use of the Black Scholes
valuation model for certain share awards that do not include dividend rights.

Deferred Compensation

The company issues deferred cash awards to certain employees which are linked in value to investment products. The
employees may earn a return linked to the appreciation or depreciation of specified investments, typically the funds
they manage. The company intends to hedge economically the exposure to market movements by holding the
investments on its balance sheet. The company recognizes as compensation expense the value of the liability to
employees, including the appreciation or depreciation of the liability, over the award's vesting period in proportion to
the vested amount of the award. The company immediately recognizes the full value of the related investment, and
any subsequent appreciation or depreciation of the investment, below operating income in other gains and losses.

Pensions

For defined contribution plans, contributions payable related to the accounting period are charged to the income
statement. For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is separately determined for each plan using the
projected unit credit method, based on actuarial valuations performed at each balance sheet date. The company's
annual measurement date is December 31. A portion of actuarial gains and losses is recognized through the income
statement if the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain or loss at the end of the prior period exceeds the greater of
10.0% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation (before deducting plan assets) at that date and 10.0% of
the fair value of any plan assets. Prior service costs are recognized over the remaining service periods of active
employees.

Advertising Costs
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The company expenses the cost of all advertising and promotional activities as incurred. The company incurred
advertising costs of $19.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: $17.9 million;
December 31, 2009: $21.0 million). These amounts are included in marketing expenses in the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Leases

The company complies with lease accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 840, "Leases.” Under operating leases,
where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset, rental payments, as well as
any step rent provisions specified in lease agreements, are aggregated and charged evenly to expense over the lease
term beginning on the date of initial possession or the effective date of the lease agreement. Maintenance, utility, and
tax costs included in lease agreements are expensed in the period incurred. Rental payments dependent upon an
existing index or rate are included in the minimum lease payments based on the index or rate in effect at the inception
of the lease and are recognized on a straight-line basis over the minimum lease term. Changes in rental payments that
result from subsequent changes in the index or rate are expensed in the period incurred.
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Capital improvement funding and other lease concessions provided by the landlord are recorded as a deferred liability
and are amortized evenly over the lease term as a reduction of rental expense.

The company accounts for lease termination costs in accordance with ASC Topic 420, “Exit or Disposal Cost
Obligations,” which requires that (1) a liability for costs to terminate a contract before the end of its term shall be
recognized at the time termination occurs and measured at fair value and (2) a liability for costs that will continue to
be incurred under a contract for its remaining term without economic benefit to the company be recognized and
measured at its fair value when the company ceases to use the right conveyed by the contract, net of estimated
sublease rentals that could reasonably be obtained even if the company does not anticipate entering into any
subleasing arrangements.

Taxation

Income taxes are provided for in accordance with ASC Topic 740, “Income Taxes” (ASC Topic 740). Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recorded for temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and the
reported amounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements, using the statutory tax rates in effect for the year in which
the differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in the results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is
recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.
The company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken or expected
to be taken in a tax return. The company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits
in income tax expense.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the periods, excluding treasury shares. Diluted earnings per share is
computed using the treasury stock method, which requires computing share equivalents and dividing net income
attributable to common shareholders by the total weighted average number of shares and share equivalents
outstanding during the period.

Comprehensive Income

The company's other comprehensive income/(loss) consists of changes in unrealized gains and losses on investment
securities classified as available-for-sale, the company's share of other comprehensive income of equity method
investments, reclassification adjustments for realized gains/(losses) on those investment securities classified as
available-for-sale, foreign currency translation adjustments and employee benefit plan liability adjustments. Such
amounts are recorded net of applicable taxes.

Dividends to Shareholders

Dividends to shareholders are recognized on the declaration date. Dividends are declared and paid on a quarterly
basis.

Translation of Foreign Currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies (currencies other than the functional currencies of the company's subsidiaries) are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary

assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are remeasured into the functional currencies of the
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company's subsidiaries at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on revaluation are
included in the income statement.

The company's reporting currency and the functional currency of the Parent is U.S. dollars. On consolidation, the
assets and liabilities of company subsidiary operations whose functional currencies are currencies other than the
U.S. dollar (“foreign” operations) are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income
statement figures are translated at the weighted average rates for the year, which approximate actual exchange rates.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of the net assets of foreign operations are taken directly to
accumulated other comprehensive income in equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are
recognized in the income statement. Goodwill and other fair value adjustments arising on acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and are translated at rates of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date.

The company does not utilize derivative financial instruments to provide a hedge against interest rate or foreign
exchange exposures except in the management of its offshore fund operations, where foreign currency forward and
swap contracts are purchased daily to hedge against foreign exchange rate movements during the four-day client
money settlement period. Certain
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consolidated investment products may also utilize such instruments. See Note 20, “Consolidated Investment Products,”
for additional information.

Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted and Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued additional guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810 which amended certain
provisions for determining whether an entity is a VIE; it requires a qualitative rather than a quantitative analysis to
determine whether the company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE; it amended the consideration of related party
relationships in the determination of the primary beneficiary of a VIE by providing an exception regarding de facto
agency relationships in certain circumstances; it requires continuous assessments of whether the company is a VIE's
primary beneficiary; and it requires enhanced disclosures about the company's involvement with VIEs. In February
2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-10, a deferral of the effective date of this additional guidance for a reporting entity's
interests in certain investment funds which have attributes of investment companies, for which the reporting entity
does not have an obligation to fund losses, and which are not structured as securitization entities. In addition, the
deferral applies to a reporting entity's interest in money market fund-type products. The company has determined that
all of its managed funds with the exception of certain collateralized loan obligation products (CLOs) qualify for the
deferral.

The adoption of the additional guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810, which was effective January 1, 2010,
had a significant impact on the presentation of the company's financial statements, as its provisions required the
company to consolidate certain CLOs that were not previously consolidated. The cumulative effect adjustment upon
adoption at January 1, 2010 resulted in an appropriation of retained earnings and a reclassification of other
comprehensive income into retained earnings of $274.3 million and $5.2 million, respectively. Prior to the adoption of
this guidance, the company accounted for its investments in these CLOs as available-for-sale investments, with
changes in the value of the company's interests being recorded through other comprehensive income.

Upon consolidation of the CLOs, the company's and the CLOs' accounting policies were effectively aligned, resulting
in the reclassification of the company's gain or loss (representing the changes in the market value of the

company's holding in the consolidated CLOs) from other comprehensive income into other gains/losses. The
company's gain on its investment in the CLOs (before consolidation) eliminates with the company's share of the
offsetting loss on the CLOs' debt. The net income/loss impact during the period of consolidation of these CLOs is
therefore completely attributed to other investors in these CLOs, as the company's share has been eliminated through
consolidation. The Consolidated Balance Sheets reflects the consolidation of assets held and debt issued by these
CLOs, despite the fact that the assets cannot be used by the company, nor is the company obligated for the debt.
Retained earnings appropriated for investors of consolidated investment products is presented as part of the company's
total equity and reflects the excess of the consolidated CLOs' assets over their liabilities, attributable to noncontrolling
third-party investors in consolidated CLOs. In addition, the company's Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the
period reflects the cash flows of these CLOs. In accordance with the standard, periods prior to January 1, 2010 have
not been restated to reflect the consolidation of these CLOs.

Upon adoption of this additional guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810, the assets and liabilities of the
consolidated CLOs were measured at fair value, as the determination of the carrying amounts was not practicable. The
company has elected the fair value option under ASC Topic 825-10-25 to measure the assets and liabilities of all
consolidated CLOs at fair value subsequent to the date of initial adoption of this additional guidance, as the company
has determined that measurement of the notes issued by consolidated CLOs at fair value better correlates with the
value of the assets held by consolidated CLOs, which are held to provide the cash flows for the note obligations. See
Note 20, “Consolidated Investment Products,” for a consolidating balance sheet at December 31, 2011.

41



Edgar Filing: Invesco Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2010-06, “Improving Disclosures about Fair Value
Measurements” (ASU 2010-06). ASU 2010-06 amends Topic 820 to require a number of additional disclosures
regarding fair value measurements. Specifically, ASU 2010-06 requires entities to disclose: (1) the amount of
significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and the reasons for these transfers; (2) the
reasons for any transfers in or out of Level 3; and (3) information in the reconciliation of recurring Level 3
measurements about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross basis. ASU 2010-06 also clarifies existing
fair value disclosures about the appropriate level of disaggregation and about inputs and valuation techniques for both
recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements that fall in either Level 2 or Level 3. The new disclosures and
clarifications of existing disclosures are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2009, except for the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements in the rollforward of activity in
Level 3 fair value measurements, which are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for
interim periods within those fiscal years. The additional disclosure requirements with respect to rollforward activity
did not have a significant impact on the company’s disclosures in Note 3, “Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities,” and
Note 20, “Consolidated Investment Products.”
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In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2011-04, “Fair Value Measurements: Amendments to
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements” (ASU 2011-04). ASU 2011-04 amends
Topic 820 to clarify existing fair value measurement disclosures to (1) specifically provide quantitative information
about the significant unobservable inputs used for all level 3 measurements and (2) disclose any transfers between
levels 1 and 2 of the fair value hierarchy, not just significant transfers. ASU 2011-04 also requires a number of
additional disclosures regarding fair value measurements. Specifically, ASU 2011-04 requires entities to disclose: (1)
a qualitative discussion about the sensitivity of recurring level 3 measurements to changes in the unobservable inputs
disclosed, including the interrelationship between inputs; (2) a description of the company’s valuation processes
surrounding level 3 measurements; (3) information about when the current use of a non-financial asset measured at
fair value differs from its highest and best use; and (4) the hierarchy classification for items whose fair value is not
recorded on the balance sheet but is disclosed in the notes. ASU 2011-04 amends Topic 820 to change the fair value
measurement of financial instruments and the application of premiums and discounts in a fair value measurement.
ASU 2011-04 also clarifies existing fair value measurement regarding the concepts of valuation premise, the
application of the highest and best use, and the fair value measurement of an instrument classified in an entity’s
shareholders’ equity. The adoption of ASU 2011-04 is not expected to have an effect on the company’s current fair
value measurements but is expected to have a significant impact on the company’s disclosures related to the assets and
liabilities of its consolidated investment products that are classified as level 3 assets within the fair value hierarchy.
The amendments to Topic 820 made by ASU 2011-04 are effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or
after December 15, 2011. As such, these disclosure changes will be required in the company’s Form 10-Q for the three
months ended March 31, 2012.

In September 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2011-08, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other: Testing
Goodwill for Impairment” (ASU 2011-08). ASU 2011-08 amends Topic 350 on testing for goodwill impairment.
Specifically, ASU 2011-08 permits an entity the option to first qualitatively assess whether it is more likely than not (a
likelihood of more than 50 percent) that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity
concludes that this is the case, it would be required to calculate the fair value of the reporting unit under step one of

the goodwill impairment test; otherwise, no further testing is required. An entity may bypass the qualitative

assessment in any period and proceed directly to step one of the goodwill impairment test, and may resume

performing the qualitative assessment in any subsequent period. The amendments made by ASU 2011-08 are effective
for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011.

2. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND INTEGRATION

On June 1, 2010, Invesco acquired from Morgan Stanley its retail asset management business, including Van Kampen
Investments (the "acquired business" or the "acquisition"), in exchange for an aggregate of 30.9 million shares of
common stock and participating preferred stock on an as converted (which converted in November 2010) basis, which
had a total fair value of $567.8 million, and $770.0 million in cash. The share issuance portion of the acquisition
consideration represents a non-cash financing activity related to the statement of cash flows. Also during 2010, the
company acquired Concord Capital and AIG Asia Real Estate.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the company incurred $29.4 million (2010: $150.0 million) of transaction
and integration costs ($18.2 million and $103.1 million net of taxation, respectively). Transaction and integration costs
include charges related to prior acquisitions and do not represent ongoing costs of the fully integrated combined
organization. They include legal, regulatory, advisory, valuation, integration-related employee incentive awards and
other professional or consulting fees, general and administrative costs, including travel costs related to the transaction
and the costs of temporary staff involved in executing the transaction, and post-closing costs of integrating the
acquired business into the company's existing operations including incremental costs associated with achieving
synergy savings. Additionally, transaction and integration expenses include legal costs related to the defense of
auction rate preferred securities complaints raised in the pre-acquisition period with respect to various closed-end
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funds included in the acquisition obtained as part of the acquired business. See Note 19, “Commitments and
Contingencies” for additional information. The following table presents acquisition-related and integration-related

charges incurred during the period.

$ in millions

Acquisition-related charges
Integration-related charges:

Staff costs

Technology, contractor and related costs
Professional services

Total integration-related charges

Total transaction and integration charges
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For the year ended December 31,

2011

2.8

11.0
15.6
294
294

2010
5.7

39.1
534
51.8
144.3
150.0
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3. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments is presented in the below summary table. The fair value of
financial instruments held by consolidated investment products is presented in Note 20, "Consolidated Investment
Products."

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
$ in millions Footnote Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value

Reference  Value Value
Cash and cash equivalents 727.4 727.4 740.5 740.5
Available for sale investments 4 63.5 63.5 100.0 100.0
Assets held for policyholders 1,243.5 1,243.5 1,295.4 1,295.4
Trading investments 4 187.5 187.5 180.6 180.6
Foreign time deposits* 4 322 322 28.2 28.2
Support agreements* 19,20 (1.0 ) (1.0 ) (.0 ) (2.0 )
Policyholder payables (1,243.5 ) (1,2435 ) (1,2954 ) (1,2954 )
Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased (1.0 ) (1.0 ) (0.7 ) (0.7 )
Derivative liabilities — — (0.1 ) (0.1 )
Note Payable (16.8 ) (16.8 ) (189 ) (18.9 )
Total debt* 9 (1,284.7 ) (1,307.5 ) (1,315.7 ) (1,3393 )

These financial instruments are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis. See the indicated footnotes for
*additional information about the carrying and fair values of these financial instruments. Foreign time deposits are
measured at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

A three-level valuation hierarchy exists for disclosure of fair value measurements based upon the transparency of
inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 - inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.

Level 2 - inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,
and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
financial instrument.

{evel 3 - inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

An asset or liability's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

There are three types of valuation approaches: a market approach, which uses observable prices and other relevant
information that is generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities; an income
approach, which uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single, discounted present value amount;
and a cost approach, which is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of
an asset.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, as well as the general classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
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Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include cash investments in money market funds and time deposits. Cash investments in money
market funds are valued under the market approach through the use of quoted market prices in an active market, which
is the net asset value of the underlying funds, and are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments include amounts seeded into affiliated investment products, and investments in
affiliated CLOs. Seed money is valued under the market approach through the use of quoted market prices available in
an active market and is
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classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy; there is no modeling or additional information needed to arrive at
the fair values of these investments. Seed money investments are investments held in Invesco managed funds with the
purpose of providing capital to the funds during their development periods. CLOs are valued using an income
approach through the use of certain observable and unobservable inputs. Due to current liquidity constraints within the
market for CLO products that require the use of unobservable inputs, these investments are classified as level 3 within
the valuation hierarchy.

Assets held for policyholders

Assets held for policyholders represent investments held by one of the company's subsidiaries, which is an insurance
entity that was established to facilitate retirement savings plans in the U.K. The assets held for policyholders are
accounted for at fair value pursuant to ASC Topic 944, “Financial Services - Insurance,” and are comprised primarily of
affiliated unitized funds. The assets are measured at fair value under the market approach based on the quoted prices

of the underlying funds in an active market and are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. The

policyholder payables are indexed to the value of the assets held for policyholders.

Trading investments

Trading investments include investments held to hedge economically against costs the company incurs in connection
with certain deferred compensation plans in which the company participates, as well as trading and investing activities
in equity and debt securities entered into in its capacity as sponsor of UITs.

{nvestments related to deferred compensation plans

Investments related to deferred compensation plans are primarily invested in affiliated funds that are held to hedge
economically current and non-current deferred compensation liabilities. Investments related to deferred compensation
plans are valued under the market approach through the use of quoted prices in an active market and are classified
within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.

Unit Investment Trust ("UIT")-related equity and debt securities
At December 31, 2011, UIT-related equity and debt securities consisted of investments in corporate stock, UITs, and
U.S. state and political subdivision securities. Each is discussed more fully below.

Corporate stock

The company temporarily holds investments in corporate stock for purposes of creating a UIT. Corporate stocks are
valued under the market approach through use of quoted prices on an exchange. To the extent these securities are
actively traded, valuation adjustments are not applied and they are categorized within level 1 of the valuation
hierarchy; otherwise, they are categorized in level 2.

UITs

The company may hold units of its sponsored UITs at period-end for sale in the primary market or secondary market.
Equity UITs are valued under the market approach through use of quoted prices on an exchange. Fixed income UITs
are valued using recently executed transaction prices, market price quotations (where observable), bond spreads, or
credit default swap spreads. The spread data used is for the same maturities as the underlying bonds. If the spread data
does not reference the issuers, then data that references comparable issuers is used. When observable price quotations
are not available, fair value is determined based on cash flow models with yield curves, bond or single name credit
default spreads, and recovery rates based on collateral value as key inputs. Depending on the nature of the inputs,
these investments are categorized as level 1, 2, or 3.

Municipal securities

Municipal securities are valued using recently executed transaction prices, market price quotations (where
observable), bond spreads, or credit default swap spreads. The spread data used is for the same maturities as the
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underlying bonds. If the spread data does not reference the issuers, then data that references comparable issuers is
used. When observable price quotations are not available, fair value is determined based on cash flow models with

yield curves, bond or single name credit default spreads, and recovery rates based on collateral value as key inputs.

Depending on the nature of the inputs, these investments are categorized as level 1, 2, or 3.
UlT-related financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, and derivative instruments
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The company uses U.S. Treasury futures, which are types of derivative financial instruments, to hedge economically
fixed income UIT inventory and securities in order to mitigate market risk. Open futures contracts are marked to
market daily through earnings, which is recorded in the company's consolidated statement of income in other revenue,
along with the mark-to-market on the underlying trading securities held. Fair values of derivative contracts in an asset
position are included in other assets in the company's consolidated balance sheet. Fair values of derivative contracts in
a liability position are included in other liabilities in the company's consolidated balance sheet. These derivative
contracts are valued under the market approach through use of quoted prices in an active market and are classified
within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. At December 31, 2011 there were 10 futures contracts with a notional value
of $1.3 million (December 31, 2010: 76 open futures contracts with a notional value of $9.3 million). Additionally, to
hedge economically the market risk associated with equity and debt securities and UITs temporarily held as trading
investments, the company will hold short corporate stock, exchange-traded fund, or U.S. treasury security positions.
These transactions are recorded as financial instruments sold, not yet purchased and are included in other liabilities in
the company's consolidated balance sheet. To the extent these securities are actively traded, valuation adjustments are
not applied and they are categorized in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy; otherwise, they are categorized in Level 2.

Note payable

The note payable represents a payable linked to the aggregate amount of distributions proportional to Invesco's
acquired ownership interest in two consolidated real estate funds. As the underlying investments in the funds are
carried at fair value (and are disclosed as Level 3 assets in the fair value hierarchy table included in Note 20,
"Consolidated Investment Products"), management elected the fair value option for the note payable in order to offset
the fair value movements recognized from the funds and has recorded the note payable as a Level 3 liability. The fair
value of the note payable represents its remaining principal balance adjusted for changes in equity of the funds that is
attributable to the company's ownership interest in the funds.

The following table presents, for each of the hierarchy levels described above, the carrying value of the company's
assets and liabilities, including major security type for equity and debt securities, which are measured at fair value on
the face of the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2011.
As of December 31, 2011
Quoted Prices

in Active glggrﬁcant Significant
N Fair Value = Markets for Unobservable
$ in millions . Observable
Measurementsldentical Inputs
Inputs
Assets (Level 2) (Level 3)
(Level 1)
Current assets:
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds 257.7 257.7 — —
Investments:*
Available-for-sale:
Seed money 63.5 63.5 — —
Trading investments:
Investments related to deferred compensation plans 184.4 184.4 — —
UlT-related equity and debt securities:
Corporate stock 1.1 1.1 — —
UITs 0.9 0.9 — —
Municipal securities 1.1 — 1.1 —
Assets held for policyholders 1,243.5 1,243.5 — —
Total assets at fair value 1,752.2 1,751.1 1.1 —

Current liabilities:
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Policyholder payables (1,243.5 ) (1,243.5 ) — —
UlT-related financial instruments sold, not yet

purchased:

Corporate equities (1.0 ) (1.0 ) — —

Note payable (16.8 ) — — (16.8 )
Total liabilities at fair value (1,261.3 ) (1,244.5 ) — (16.8 )

Current foreign time deposits of $32.2 million and other current investments of $0.5 million are excluded from this

,.table. Other non-current equity and cost method investments of $193.1 million and $7.7 million, respectively, are
also excluded from this table. These investments are not measured at fair value, in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.
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The following table presents, for each of the hierarchy levels described above, the carrying value of the company's
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value as of December 31, 2010:
As of December 31, 2010

Quoted Prices . ..
. . Significant C e
in Active Other Significant
C Fair Value = Markets for Unobservable
$ in millions . Observable
Measurementsldentical Inputs (Level
Inputs (Level
Assets 2) 3)
(Level 1)
Current assets:
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds 316.4 316.4 — —
Investments:*
Available-for-sale:
Seed money 99.5 99.5 — —
Trading investments:
Investments related to deferred compensation plans 165.5 165.5 — —
UlT-related equity and debt securities:
Corporate stock 1.2 1.2 — —
UITs 4.0 4.0 — —
Municipal securities 9.9 — 9.9 —
Assets held for policyholders 1,295.4 1,295.4 — —
Total current assets 1,891.9 1,882.0 9.9 —
Non-current assets:
Investments - available-for-sale*:
CLOs 0.5 — — 0.5
Total assets at fair value 1,892.4 1,882.0 9.9 0.5
Current liabilities:
Policyholder payables (1,2954 ) (1,295.4 ) — —
UlT-related financial instruments sold, not yet
purchased:
Corporate equities 0.7 ) (0.7 ) — —
UlIT-related derivative liabilities 0.1 ) (0.1 ) — —
Non-current liabilities:
Note payable (18.9 ) — — (18.9 )
Total liabilities at fair value (1,315.1 ) (1,296.2 ) — (18.9 )

Current foreign time deposits of $28.2 million and other current investments of $0.5 million are excluded from this

,.table. Other non-current equity and cost method investments of $156.9 million and $7.0 million, respectively, are
also excluded from this table. These investments are not measured at fair value, in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the beginning and ending fair value measurements for level 3 assets and
liabilities during the year ending December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, which are valued using significant
unobservable inputs:

For the year

For the year ended December 31, ended December

201 31,2010
$ in millions CLO Investment Note Payable =~ CLO Investment
Beginning balance 0.5 (18.9 ) 17.9
Adoption of guidance now encompassed in ASC o (174 )
Topic 810* ’
Beginning balance, as adjusted 0.5 (18.9 ) 0.5
Net unrealized gains and losses included in
accumulated other comprehensive — — 0.1
income/(loss)**
Foreign exchange movements included in other 0.8 ) —
expenses
Purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements
. ’ ’ ’ ’ 0.5 ) 2.9 0.1 )
Ending balance — (16.8 ) 0.5

The company adopted guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810 on January 1, 2010, resulting in the
consolidation of CLOs for which the company has an underlying investment of $50.4 million at December 31, 2011
* (before consolidation). The adjustment of $17.4 million in the table above reflects the elimination of the company's
equity interest upon adoption. In accordance with the standard, prior periods have not been restated to reflect the
consolidation of these CLOs.
There were no net unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) for the
s year ended December 31, 2011 as assets was sold in the year ended December 31, 2011 (year ended December 31,
2010: $0.1 million attributed to the change in unrealized gains and losses related to assets still held at December 31,
2010).
Prior to the adoption of guidance included in ASU 2010-06, discussed in Note 1, “Accounting Policies,” purchases,
sales, issuances, and settlements were presented net. For the year ended December 31, 2011 there was $0.1 million
*#%of return of capital and a sale of $0.4 million related to the CLO investment (year ended December 31, 2010: $0.1
million return of capital activity). For the year ended December 31, 2011, there was $2.9 million in settlement
activity related to the note payable.

4. INVESTMENTS

The disclosures below include details of the company's investments. Investments held by consolidated investment
products are detailed in Note 20, "Consolidated Investment Products."

Current Investments

As of
December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2011 2010
Available-for-sale investments:
Seed money 63.5 99.5
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Trading investments:
Investments related to deferred compensation plans
UlT-related equity and debt securities

Foreign time deposits

Other

Total current investments

31

184.4
3.1
322
0.5
283.7

165.5
15.1
28.2
0.5
308.8
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Non-current Investments

As of
December 31, December 31,
$ in millions 2011 2010
Available-for-sale investments:
CLOs — 0.5
Equity method investments 193.1 156.9
Other 7.7 7.0
Total non-current investments 200.8 164.4

The portion of trading gains and losses for the year ended December 31, 2011, that relates to trading securities still
held at December 31, 2011, was a $3.3 million net loss (December 31, 2010: a $8.6 million net gain).

Realized gains and losses recognized in the income statement during the year from investments classified as
available-for-sale are as follows:

2011 2010 2009
ProceedsGross Gross ProceedsGross Gross ProceedsGross Gross
$ in millions from Realized Realized from Realized Realized from Realized Realized
Sales  Gains Losses Sales Gains Losses Sales Gains Losses
Current available-for-sale 593 88 (12 ) 645 99 (13 ) 475 45 (16 )
investments
Non—current available-for-sale 0.9 0.6 . 02 L . 22 14 o
investments

Upon the sale of available-for-sale securities, net realized gains of $8.2 million, $8.6 million and $4.3 million were
transferred from accumulated other comprehensive income into the Consolidated Statements of Income during 2011,
2010, and 2009, respectively. The specific identification method is used to determine the realized gain or loss on
securities sold or otherwise disposed.

Gross unrealized holding gains and losses recognized in other accumulated comprehensive income from
available-for-sale investments are presented in the table below:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Gross Gross Gross Gross
$ in millions Cost Unrealized Unrealized Fair Cost Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Holding  Holding  Value Holding  Holding  Value
Gains Losses Gains Losses
Current:

Seed money 657 2.2 4.4 ) 63.5 89.6 10.6 (0.7 ) 99.5
Current available-for-sale 657 22 @44 ) 635 89.6 106 07 ) 995
investments
Non-current:

CLOs — — — — 0.3 0.2 — 0.5
Non—current available-for-sale . o . L 0.3 0.2 . 0.5
investments:

657 2.2 4.4 ) 63.5 89.9 10.8 (0.7 ) 100.0

The following table provides the breakdown of available-for-sale investments with unrealized losses at December 31,
2011:
Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
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Gross Gross Gross
$ in millions Fair Value Unrealized Fair Value Unrealized Fair Value Unrealized
Losses Losses Losses
Seed money (64 funds) 37.5 4.4 ) — — 37.5 4.4 )
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The following table provides the breakdown of available-for-sale investments with unrealized losses at December 31,
2010:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Gross Gross Gross
$ in millions Fair Value Unrealized Fair Value Unrealized Fair Value Unrealized
Losses Losses Losses
Seed money (40 funds) 0.4 — 5.7 (0.7 ) 6.1 0.7 )

The company recorded other-than-temporary impairment charges (OTTI) on seed money investments of $1.0 million
in 2011 (2010: $6.7 million). The gross unrealized losses of seed money investments were primarily caused by
declines in the market value of the underlying funds and foreign exchange movements. After conducting a review of
the financial condition and near-term prospects of the underlying securities in the seeded funds as well as the severity
and duration of the impairment, the company does not consider its remaining gross unrealized losses on these
securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired. The securities are expected to recover their value over time and the
company has the intent and ability to hold the securities until this recovery occurs.

As discussed in Note 1, “Accounting Policies,” the company adopted guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 320, on
April 1, 2009. Upon adoption, the company recorded a cumulative effect adjustment of $1.5 million to the April 1,
2009, opening balance of retained earnings with a corresponding adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive
income, representing the non-credit component of previously-recognized OTTI. During the year ended December 31,
2011, there were no charges to other comprehensive income from other-than-temporary impairment related to
non-credit related factors. A rollforward of the cumulative credit-related other-than-temporary impairment charges
recognized in earnings for which some portion of the impairment was recorded in other comprehensive income is as
follows:

Year ended Year ended
In millions December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
Beginning balance 0.8 18.8
Adoption of guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 8§10* — (18.0 )
Beginning balance, as adjusted 0.8 0.8
Additional credit losses recognized during the period related to securities for
which:
No OTTI has been previously recognized — —
OTTT has been previously recognized — —
Ending balance 0.8 0.8

The company adopted guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810 on January 1, 2010, resulting in the
consolidation of CLOs for which the company has an underlying investment of $50.4 million at December 31, 2011

* (before consolidation). Of the $18.8 million cumulative credit-related OTTI balance at January 1, 2010, $18.0
million relates to CLOs that were consolidated into the company's Consolidated Balance Sheet, resulting in the
elimination of our equity interest.

The company owns 100% of the voting control of its subsidiary entities, directly or indirectly, with the exception of
the following entities, which are consolidated with resulting noncontrolling interests:
Name of Company

56



Edgar Filing: Invesco Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

Country of
Incorporation
India Asset Recovery Management Limited India
VV Immobilien Verwaltungs und Beteiligungs GmbH Germany
VV Immobilien Verwaltungs GmbH Germany
HVH Immobilien und Beteiligungs GmbH Germany

Following are the company's investments in joint ventures and affiliates, which are accounted for using the equity

method and are recorded as non-current investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

33

% Voting Interest
Owned

80.1

70.0

70.0

70.0

%
%
%
%
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Name of Company

Invesco Great Wall Fund Management Company Limited
Huaneng Invesco WLR Investment Consulting Company Limited
Pocztylion - ARKA

Country of % Voting Interest
Incorporation Owned

China 49.0 %
China 50.0 %
Poland 29.3 %

Undistributed earnings from equity method investees have not been a material restriction on the company's ability to
pay dividends to shareholders. Equity method investments also include the company's investments in certain of its
sponsored private equity, real estate and other investment entities. The company's investment is generally less than 5%
of the capital of these entities. These entities include variable interest entities for which the company has determined
that it is not the primary beneficiary and other investment products structured as partnerships for which the company
is the general partner and the other limited partners possess either substantive kick-out, liquidation or participation
rights. See Note 20, “Consolidated Investment Products,” for additional information.
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5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Changes in property and equipment balances are as follows:

$ in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2011
Foreign exchange
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
December 31, 2011

Accumulated depreciation:

January 1, 2011
Foreign exchange
Depreciation expense
Disposals
December 31, 2011
Net book value:
December 31, 2011
Cost:

January 1, 2010
Foreign exchange
Additions**
Transfers
Disposals
December 31, 2010

Accumulated depreciation:

January 1, 2010
Foreign exchange
Depreciation expense
Disposals

December 31, 2010
Net book value:
December 31, 2010

Technology
and Other
Equipment

3184
(2.2
14.3
15.8
(79.1
267.2

(261.7
14
(20.1
717
(202.7

64.5

282.5
1.7
10.0
28.3
4.1
318.4

(245.5
(2.1
(18.2
4.1
(261.7

56.7

Software

266.1
0.6
3.8
22.3
(7.6
284.0

(184.0
0.7
(279
8.0
(203.2

80.8

231.3
(1.1
7.4
28.6
(0.1
266.1

(165.3
0.8
(19.6
0.1
(184.0

82.1

)

)

)

)

Land and
Buildings*

72.1
0.7
1.2

(6.9
65.7

(8.4
0.1
1.3
0.5
0.1

56.6

72.5
1.4
1.0

72.1
(7.5
0.3

1.2
8.4

63.7

Work In
Process

19.6
0.5
73.7
(48.6

44.2

44.2
115
(0.1
78.2
(70.0

19.6

19.6

Leasehold
Improvements

159.2

0.8 )
17.0

10.5

9.3 )
176.6

(108.9 )
0.8
(11.0 )
9.2
(109.9 )

66.7

141.3
1.3
35
13.1

159.2

(100.1 )
(1.4 )
(7.4 )

(108.9 )

50.3

Total

8354
4.8
110.0

(102.9
837.7

(563.0
3.0
(60.3
95.4
(524.9

312.8

739.1
04
100.1

4.2
835.4

(518.4
2.4
(46.4
4.2
(563.0

2724

,Included within land and buildings are $33.6 million at December 31, 2011 (2010: $33.2 million) in non-depreciable

land assets.

**Included within additions is $5.4 million at December 31, 2010 related to the acquired businesses.
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents the major classes of the company's intangible assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

$ in millions

December 31, 2011

Management contracts - indefinite-lived
Management contracts - finite-lived
Customer relationships

Distribution agreements

Trademarks / Trade names

Other

Total

December 31, 2010

Management contracts - indefinite-lived
Management contracts - finite-lived
Customer relationships

Distribution agreements

Trademarks / Trade names

Other

Total

Where evidence exists that the underlying arrangements have a high likelihood of continued renewal at little or no

Gross Book Accumulated
Amortization

Value

1,206.4
185.0
40.0
17.0
13.3
0.8
1,462.5

1,161.7
199.7
40.0
17.0
13.0
3.6
1,435.0

N/A
(117.0
(5.3
(6.7
(10.3
0.4
(139.7

N/A
(87.0
1.9
(2.5
(3.8
(2.6
(97.8

N N N S N

~— N N N N

Net Book
Value

1,206.4
68.0
34.7
10.3
3.0

0.4
1,322.8

1,161.7
112.7
38.1
14.5
9.2

1.0
1,337.2

Weighted
Average

Amortization
Period (years)

N/A
8.7
12.0
4.0
2.0
10.0
8.5

N/A
9.0
12.0
4.0
2.0
6.1
8.8

cost to the company, the intangible asset is assigned an indefinite life. Indefinite-lived intangible assets primarily

relate to management contracts and related rights to manage the assets acquired during prior acquisitions. The 2011

and 2010 annual impairment reviews of indefinite-lived intangible assets determined that no impairment existed at the

respective review dates.

Amortization expense was $42.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: $30.3
million) and is included within General and Administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.
Estimated amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years based upon the company's intangible

assets at December 31, 2011 is as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

$ in millions
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
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24.0
20.4
14.9
12.6
12.6
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7. GOODWILL

The table below details changes in the goodwill balance:

. - Gross Accumulated Net Book

$ in millions Book i
Impairment Value
Value

January 1, 2011 6,996.8 (16.6 ) 6,980.2
Business combinations 30.5 — 30.5
Foreign exchange and other (102.8 ) — (102.8 )
December 31, 2011 6,924.5 (16.6 ) 6,907.9
January 1, 2010 6,484.2 (16.6 ) 6,467.6
Business combinations 440.0 — 440.0
Foreign exchange and other 72.6 — 72.6
December 31, 2010 6,996.8 (16.6 ) 6,980.2

The 2010 acquisitions of Morgan Stanley's retail asset management business, including Van Kampen Investments, as
well as the acquisitions of Concord Capital and AIG Asia Real Estate collectively added $399.6 million of goodwill to
the company's Consolidated Balance Sheet at their respective acquisition dates. The 2011 earn-out calculations related
to the 2006 acquisition of W.L. Ross & Co. and Invesco PowerShares resulted in an addition to goodwill of $30.5
million (2010 earn-out goodwill addition: $40.4 million).

The 2011 and 2010 annual impairment reviews determined that no impairment existed at the respective review dates.
No interim impairment tests were deemed necessary during 2010 or 2011.

8. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

The table below details the components of other current liabilities:

$ in millions 2011 2010
Accruals and other liabilities 168.6  182.5
Compensation and benefits 64.3 55.4
Accrued bonus and deferred compensation 336.0 3653
Accounts payable 272.6 3025
Other current liabilities 841.5 905.7
9. DEBT

The disclosures below include details of the company's debt. Debt of consolidated investment products is detailed in
Note 20, “Consolidated Investment Products.”

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
$ in millions Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
Value Value
Unsecured Senior Notes*:
5.625% - due April 17, 2012 215.1 217.3 215.1 223.7
5.375% - due February 27, 2013 333.5 343.8 333.5 335.2
5.375% - due December 15, 2014 197.1 207.4 197.1 2104
Floating rate credit facility expiring June 3, 2016 539.0 539.0 570.0 570.0
Total debt 1,284.7 1,307.5 1,315.7 1,339.3
Less: current maturities of total debt 215.1 ) (2173 ) — —
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Long-term debt 1,069.6 1,090.2 1,315.7 1,339.3

. The company's Senior Note indentures contain certain restrictions on mergers or consolidations. Beyond these items,
there are no other restrictive covenants in the indentures.
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The fair market value of the company's Senior Notes was determined by market quotes provided by Bloomberg. In the
absence of an active market, the company relies upon the average price quoted by brokers for determining the fair
market value of the debt. The level of trading, both in number of trades and amount of Senior Notes traded, has
increased to a level that the company believes market quotes to be a reasonable representation of the current fair
market value of the Senior Notes.

Analysis of Borrowings by Maturity:

$ in millions December 31,

2011
2012 215.1
2013 333.5
2014 197.1
2016 539.0
Total debt 1,284.7

On June 3, 2011 the company amended and restated its unsecured $1.25 billion credit agreement to, among other
matters, provide for a term of five years. The amended and restated facility is now scheduled to expire on June 3,
2016.

At December 31, 2011, the outstanding balance on the credit facility was $539.0 million and the weighted average
interest rate on the credit facility was 1.394%. Borrowings under the credit facility will bear interest at (i) LIBOR for
specified interest periods or (ii) a floating base rate (based upon the highest of (a) the Bank of America prime rate, (b)
the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50% and (c) LIBOR for an interest period of one month plus 1.00%), plus, in either case,
an applicable margin determined with reference to the company's credit ratings and specified credit default spreads.
Based on credit ratings as of December 31, 2011 of the company and such credit default spreads, the applicable
margin for LIBOR-based loans was 1.10% and for base rate loans was 0.10%. In addition, the company is required to
pay the lenders a facility fee on the aggregate commitments of the lenders (whether or not used) at a rate per annum
which is based on the company's credit ratings. Based on credit ratings as of December 31, 2011, the annual facility
fee was equal to 0.15%.

The credit agreement governing the credit facility contains customary restrictive covenants on the company and its
subsidiaries. Restrictive covenants in the credit agreement include, but are not limited to: prohibitions on creating,
incurring or assuming any liens; entering into certain restrictive merger arrangements; selling, leasing, transferring or
otherwise disposing of assets; making a material change in the nature of the business; making material amendments to
organic documents; making a significant accounting policy change in certain situations; entering into transactions with
affiliates; incurring certain indebtedness through the non-guarantor subsidiaries. Many of these restrictions are subject
to certain minimum thresholds and exceptions. Financial covenants under the credit agreement include: (i) the
quarterly maintenance of a debt/EBITDA leverage ratio, as defined in the credit agreement, of not greater than
3.25:1.00 through December 31, 2012, and not greater than 3.00:1.00 thereafter, (ii) a coverage ratio (EBITDA, as
defined in the credit agreement/interest payable for the four consecutive fiscal quarters ended before the date of
determination) of not less than 4.00:1.00.

The credit agreement governing the credit facility also contains customary provisions regarding events of default
which could result in an acceleration or increase in amounts due, including (subject to certain materiality thresholds
and grace periods) payment default, failure to comply with covenants, material inaccuracy of representation or
warranty, bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, change of control, certain judgments, ERISA matters, cross-default
to other debt agreements, governmental action prohibiting or restricting the company or its subsidiaries in a manner
that has a material adverse effect and failure of certain guaranty obligations. The company is in compliance with all
regulatory minimum net capital requirements.
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The lenders (and their respective affiliates) may have provided, and may in the future provide, investment banking,
cash management, underwriting, lending, commercial banking, leasing, foreign exchange, trust or other advisory
services to the company and its subsidiaries and affiliates. These parties may have received, and may in the future
receive, customary compensation for these services.

The company maintains approximately $20.0 million in letters of credit from a variety of banks. The letters of credit

are generally one-year automatically-renewable facilities and are maintained for various commercial reasons.
Approximately $16.3 million of the letters of credit support office lease obligations.
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10. SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the number of common shares and common share equivalents issued are represented in the table below:
Year ended
December 31,

Year ended

In millions December 31,
2011

Common shares issued - beginning balance 490.4

Issue of new shares —

Common shares issued - ending balance 490.4

Less: Treasury shares for which dividend and voting rights do (444 )

not apply '

Common shares outstanding 446.0

Year ended

December 31,

2010
459.5
30.9
490.4

(30.3
460.1

2009
426.6
32.9
459.5

(28.1
431.4

)

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the company repurchased 18.8 million shares (three months ended
December 31, 2011: 5.3 million shares) in the market at a cost of $436.5 million (three months ended December 31,
2011: $103.4 million cost) (year ended December 31, 2010: 9.4 million shares, at a cost of $192.2 million).
Separately, an aggregate of 3.1 million shares were withheld on vesting events during the year ended December 31,
2011 to meet employees' withholding tax obligations (December 31, 2010: 1.9 million). The fair value of these shares
withheld at the respective withholding dates was $76.6 million (December 31, 2010: $47.9 million). Approximately
$732 million remained authorized under the company's share repurchase plan at December 31, 2011 (December 31,

2010: $1.2 billion).

Total treasury shares at December 31, 2011 were 54.0 million (December 31, 2010: 42.7 million), including 9.6
million unvested restricted stock awards (December 31, 2010: 12.4 million) for which dividend and voting rights
apply. The market price of common shares at the end of 2011 was $20.09. The total market value of the company's

54.0 million treasury shares was $1.1 billion at December 31, 2011.

Movements in Treasury Shares comprise:

Year ended
In millions December 31,
2011
Beginning balance 42.7
Acquisition of common shares 21.8
Distribution of common shares (9.6 )
Common shares distributed to meet option exercises (0.9 )
Ending balance 54.0

11. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Year ended

December 31,

2010
40.2
11.3
(7.0
(1.8
42.7

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) at December 31 were as follows:

$ in millions

Net unrealized gains/(losses) on available-for-sale investments

Tax on unrealized gains/(losses) on available-for-sale investments
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) of equity method investments
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments

Tax on cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments

Employee benefit plan liability adjustments

Tax on employee benefit plan liability adjustments

Total accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)

2011

2.2 )
0.6 )
4.3 )
452.7

2.5

982 )

234
373.3

2010
10.1
2.4
29
524.6
2.0
(55.8
14.1
495.5

Year ended
December 31,

2009
50.7
1.6
(7.5
4.6
40.2

)
)
2009
54
(1.6 )
442.0
2.0
745 )
20.3
393.6
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Total other comprehensive income/(loss) details are presented below.

$ in millions 2011 2010 2009

Net income 622.0 636.8 209.3
Adoption of guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 320 — — 1.5 )
Unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale investments* 122 ) 115 10.6

Tax on unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale investments 1.7 2.7 ) (2.8 )
Comprehensive income of equity method investments (7.2 ) 2.9 —

Reclassification adjustments for net (gains) and losses on available-for-sale
investments included in net income
Tax on reclassification adjustments for gains (losses) on available-for-sale

01 )16 )40

. . . . 0.1 1.9 1.1
investments included in net income

Foreign currency translation adjustments™®* 488 ) 773 488.3

Tax on foreign currency translation adjustments 0.5 — 0.7
Adjustments to employee benefit plan liability 424 ) 187 (15.1 )
Tax on adjustments to employee benefit plan liability 9.3 (6.2 ) 4.1

Total comprehensive income/(loss) 522.9 738.6 698.7

The company adopted guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810 on January 1, 2010, resulting in the
consolidation of certain CLOs. Upon adoption, accumulated other comprehensive income was reduced by
$5.2 million, as accumulated net unrealized gains at January 1, 2010 relating to the company's investments in
certain CLOs were reclassified into retained earnings upon their consolidation.
Included in this amount are net gains of $23.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 related to foreign
currency translation adjustments attributable to consolidated investment products (year ended December 31, 2010:
**net losses of $5.3 million). Of this amount, $8.7 million is reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive
income into retained earnings appropriated for investors in consolidated investment products (year ended
December 31, 2010: $5.3 million).

12. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The company recognized total expenses of $115.1 million, $117.8 million and $90.8 million related to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized in the
Consolidated Statements of Income for share-based compensation arrangements was $32.5 million for 2011 (2010:
$35.0 million; 2009: $28.6 million).

Cash received from exercise of share options granted under share-based compensation arrangements was $12.4
million in 2011 (2010: $19.6 million; 2009: $80.0 million). The total tax benefit realized from share options exercises
was $3.5 million in 2011 (2010: $4.1 million; 2009: $5.2 million).

Share Awards

Share awards are broadly classified into two categories: time-vested and performance-vested. Share awards are
measured at fair value at the date of grant and are expensed, based on the company's estimate of shares that will
eventually vest, on a straight-line or accelerated basis over the vesting period.

Time-vested awards vest ratably over or cliff-vest at the end of a period of continued employee service.

Performance-vested awards cliff-vest at the end of or vest ratably over a defined vesting period of continued employee
service upon the company's attainment of certain performance criteria, generally the attainment of cumulative earnings
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per share growth targets at the end of the vesting period reflecting a compound annual growth rate of between 10.0%
and 15.0% per annum during a three-year period. Time-vested and performance-vested share awards are granted in the
form of restricted share awards (RSAs) or restricted share units (RSUs). Dividends accrue directly to the employee
holder of RSAs, and cash payments in lieu of dividends are made to employee holders of certain RSUs. There is
therefore no discount to the fair value of these share awards at their grant date.
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Movements on share awards priced in U.S. dollars are detailed below:
Year ended December 31, 2011  Year ended December 31, 2010

Weighted Weighted
Time-Vested Averag © Grant Time-Vested Average? Grant
Date Fair Date Fair
Value ($) Value ($)
Millions of shares, except fair values
Unvested at the beginning of period 17.4 17.25 11.6 15.24
Granted during the period 5.9 26.34 10.6 19.11
Forfeited during the period 0.4 ) 19.65 (0.3 ) 19.36
Vested and distributed during the period (5.6 ) 18.68 4.5 ) 16.04
Unvested at the end of the period 17.3 20.34 17.4 17.25

On December 4, 2007, in connection with the redomicile of the company from the U.K. to Bermuda, the company’s
primary share listing moved from the London Stock Exchange to the New York Stock Exchange. Movements on share
awards priced in Pounds Sterling, which were awarded prior to the move of the company’s primary share listing to the
New York Stock Exchange, are detailed below:

2011 2010 2009
Weighted
Millions of shares, except Average
. ’ P Time-VEBstddrmance-Ves@dant Date  Time-VEstddrmance-VestEidne- VPstfdrmance-Vested
fair values .
Fair Value
(£ Sterling)
Unvested at the beginning of 5 5 | 11.80 54 20 102 6.0
year
Granted during the year — — — — — — —
Forfeited during the year 0.1 ) — 12.90 0.1 ) (14 ) 0.3 ) (0.3 )
Modification of share-based
— — — — — — (14 )
payment awards*
Vested and distributed
during the year (2.6 ) (0.1 ) 11.89 (2.0 ) (0.5 ) 45 ) 23 )
Unvested at the end of the 0.6 L 11.25 33 0.1 54 20

year

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the company modified the terms of 1.4 million equity-settled share-based

payment awards such that the awards became deferred cash awards. As a result of this modification, $13.0 million
*was reclassified out of additional paid in capital and into other current and non-current liabilities on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet during the year. There was no impact to the Consolidated Statement of Income or earnings per

share as a result of this modification.

All share awards outstanding at December 31, 2011, had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.59 years.
The total fair value of shares that vested during 2011 was $207.8 million (2010: $125.3 million; 2009: $130.2
million). The weighted average fair value at the date of grant of the historical Pound Sterling vested and distributed
share awards was £11.89 (2010: £10.01; 2009: £7.87). The weighted average fair value at the date of grant of the U.S.
dollar vested and distributed share awards was $18.68.
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At December 31, 2011, there was $260.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share
awards; that cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.41 years.

Share Options

The company has not granted share option awards since 2005. All share options awards, therefore, were granted prior
to the December 4, 2007, redomicile from the United Kingdom to Bermuda and relisting from the London Stock
Exchange (where the predecessor company's ordinary shares traded in Pounds Sterling) to the New York Stock
Exchange (where the company's common shares now trade in U.S. Dollars). The company maintains its two historical
share option plans which have outstanding share options: The 2000 Share Option Plan and the No. 3 Executive Share
Option Scheme. All remaining outstanding share option awards were fully vested and were expensed by the company
over the applicable vesting periods (the latest of which ended prior to December 31, 2008). At the time of their grants,
the exercise prices of the share options were denominated in the company's trading currency, which was the Pound
Sterling. The company did not change the accounting for share options at the redomicile/relisting date, because the
share options were not modified at that date. The exercise price remains in Pounds Sterling and was not changed to
U.S. Dollars. Therefore, upon exercise of the share options, the Pound Sterling exercise price will be converted
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into U.S. Dollars using the spot foreign exchange rate in effect on the exercise date. Upon the exercise of share
options, the company either issues new shares or can utilize shares held in treasury (see Note 10, “Share Capital”) to
satisfy the exercise.

The share option plans provided for a grant price equal to the quoted market price of the company's shares on the date
of grant. If the options remain unexercised after a period of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire.
Furthermore, options are forfeited if the employee leaves the company before the options vest. All options outstanding
at December 31, 2011 were exercisable and had a range of exercise prices from £6.39 to £19.19, and weighted average
remaining contractual life of 2.62 years. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years

ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, was $9.2 million, $18.5 million, and $20.7 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and options exercisable was $36.3 million.
The market price of the company's common stock at December 31, 2011 was $20.09 (December 31, 2010: $24.06).

Changes in outstanding share option awards are as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Millions of shares, except prices Options Exercise Options Exercise Options Exercise

Price Price Price

(£ Sterling) (£ Sterling) (£ Sterling)
Outstanding at the beginning of year 10.7 13.85 16.4 14.99 23.1 14.06
Forfeited during the year 5.3 ) 19.70 39 ) 2190 2.1 ) 15.15
Exercised during the year (0.9 ) 833 (1.8 ) 6.70 4.6 ) 10.20
Outstanding at the end of the year 4.5 7.85 10.7 13.85 16.4 14.99
Exercisable at the end of the year 4.5 7.85 10.7 13.85 16.4 14.99

13. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Contribution Plans

The company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. The assets of the
plans are held separately from those of the company in funds under the control of trustees. When employees leave the
plans prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the company are reduced by the amount
of forfeited contributions.

The total amounts charged to the Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2011, of $53.2
million (December 31, 2010: $47.0 million, 2009: $43.6 million) represent contributions paid or payable to these
plans by the company at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As of December 31, 2011, accrued contributions of
$20.0 million (December 31, 2010: $18.9 million) for the current year will be paid to the plans.

Defined Benefit Plans

The company maintains legacy defined benefit pension plans for qualifying employees of its subsidiaries in the U.K.,
Ireland, Germany and Taiwan. All defined benefit plans are closed to new participants. The company also maintains a
postretirement medical plan in the U.S., which was closed to new participants in 2005. In 2006, the plan was amended
to eliminate benefits for all participants who will not meet retirement eligibility by 2008. The assets of all defined
benefit schemes are held in separate trustee-administered funds. Under the plans, the employees are generally entitled
to retirement benefits based on final salary at retirement.
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The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were valued
as of December 31, 2011. The benefit obligation, related current service cost and prior service cost were measured
using the projected unit credit method.
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Benefit Obligations and Funded Status

The amounts included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets arising from the company's obligations and plan assets in
respect of its defined benefit retirement plans is as follows:

Retirement Plans Medical Plan
$ in millions 2011 2010 2011 2010
Benefit obligation (383.3 ) (336.1) (48.1 ) (524 )
Fair value of plan assets 288.3 286.0 8.2 8.1
Funded status 95.0 ) (50.1 ) (399 ) 443 )
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Non-current assets 2.0 1.0 — —
Current liabilities — 09 ) @2 ) 25 )
Non-current liabilities 97.0 ) (502 ) (377 ) (41.8 )
Funded status 95.0 ) (0.1 ) (399 ) 443 )
Changes in the benefit obligations were as follows:

Retirement Plans Medical Plan
$ in millions 2011 2010 2011 2010
January 1 336.1 330.2 52.4 48.5
Service cost 4.4 4.1 0.5 0.6
Interest cost 19.1 18.2 2.3 2.7
Contributions from plan participants — — 0.5 0.5
Actuarial (gains)/losses 41.8 4.6 b2 )24
Exchange difference 4.1 ) (11.8 ) — —
Benefits paid (140 ) 02 ) @4 ) 23 )
December 31 383.3 336.1 48.1 52.4

Key assumptions used in plan valuations are detailed below. Appropriate local mortality tables are also used. The
postretirement benefit obligations reflect the anticipated annual receipt of the 28% subsidy on retiree prescription drug
claims between $320 and $6,500 for 2012 (and adjusted annually in the future) as a result of the Medicare Prescription
Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003. The weighted average assumptions used to determine defined
benefit obligations at December 31, 2011, and 2010 are:

Retirement Plans Medical Plan

2011 2010 2011 2010
Discount rate 492 % 565 % 434 % 5.20 %
Expected rate of salary increases 334 % 3.60 % 3.00 % 3.00 %
Future pension/medical cost trend rate increases 322 % 349 % 5.00%-8.00%  5.00%-8.00%

Changes in the fair value of plan assets in the current period were as follows:
Retirement Plans ~ Medical Plan

$ in millions 2011 2010 2011 2010
January 1 286.0 2629 8.1 7.3
Actual return on plan assets 9.5 332 0.2 0.8
Exchange difference 06 ) 59 ) — —
Contributions from the company 6.6 6.3 — —
Contributions from plan participants — — 0.2 0.2
Benefits paid (12.8 ) (9.2 ) (0.3 ) (0.2 )
Settlement and other 04 H) (1.3 ) — —
December 31 288.3  286.0 8.2 8.1
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The components of the amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2011, and

2010 are as follows:

$ in millions

Prior service cost/(credit)
Net actuarial loss/(gain)

Total

Retirement Plans Medical Plan

2011

102.2
102.2

2010 2011 2010
— (119 ) 139 )
56.6 7.9 13.1
56.6 4.0 ) 08 )

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income expected to be amortized into net periodic benefit cost
during the year ending December 31, 2012 are as follows:

$ in millions

Prior service cost/(credit)
Net actuarial loss/(gain)

Total

Retirement Medical
Plans Plan

— 2.0 )
6.0 1.3

6.0 0.7 )

The total accumulated benefit obligation, the accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for plans
with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation and fair value of
plan assets for pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets are as follows:

$ in millions

Plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Plans with projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Retirement Plans

The components of net periodic benefit cost in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

$ in millions
Service cost
Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets 176 149
Amortization of prior service cost/(credit) — 3.0 )
Amortization of net actuarial gain/(loss) (12 ) —
Settlement — 0.6
Net periodic benefit cost (7.1 ) (9.8 )

Retirement Plans
2009 2011 2010 2009
39 ) (05 ) 06 ) (02 )
(16.6) 23 ) 27 ) 27 )
14.4 0.5 04 04
0.1 ) 20 2.0 2.0
27 ) (03 ) 27 ) 36 )
4.0 ) — — —
(129) (0.6 ) 3.6 ) 4.1 )

2011 2010

“44 ) 41 )
(19.1) (18.2)

2011 2010
371.8 3219
274.6 2742
371.8 3219
274.6 2742
Medical Plan

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2011,

2010, and 2009 are:

Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets
Expected rate of salary increases
Future pension rate increases

Retirement Plans

2011 2010 2009
565 % 568 % 584 %
584 % 620 % 6.15 %
360 % 3.62 % 3.09 %
349 % 350 % 2.88 %
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Medical Plan

2011 2010 2009
Discount rate 5.20 % 5.80 % 6.10 %
Expected return on plan assets 7.00 % 7.00 % 7.00 %
Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 % 4.50 % 4.50 %
Future medical cost trend rate increases 5.00%-8.00%  5.00%-8.00%  5.00%-8.00%

In developing the expected rate of return, the company considers long-term compound annualized returns based on
historical and current market data. Using this reference information, the company develops forward-looking return
expectations for each asset category and an expected long-term rate of return for a targeted portfolio. Discount rate
assumptions were based upon AA-rated corporate bonds of suitable terms and currencies.

The assumed health care cost rates are as follows:

Medical Plan

2011 2010 2009
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 800 % 775 % 8.00 %
Rate to which cost trend rate gradually declines 500 % 500 % 500 %
Year the rate reaches level it is assumed to remain thereafter 2020 2017 2015

A one percent change in the assumed rate of increase in healthcare costs would have the following effects:

$ in millions Increase Decrease
Effect on aggregate service and interest costs 0.3 03 )
Effect on defined benefit obligation 6.1 6.1 )

Plan Assets

The analysis of the plan assets as of December 31, 2011 was as follows:

. - Retirement % Fair Value of Medical % Fair Value

$ in millions of Plan
Plans Plan Assets Plan
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.9 0.7 % 0.2 24 %
Fund investments 126.1 43.7 % 8.0 97.6 %
Equity securities 107.5 37.3 % — — %
Government debt securities 38.1 13.2 % — — %
Other assets 0.8 0.3 % — — %
Guaranteed investments contracts 13.9 4.8 % — — %
Total 288.3 100.0 % 8.2 100 %
The analysis of the plan assets as of December 31, 2010 was as follows:
$ in millions Retirement Medical Plan
Plans

Cash and cash equivalents 5.8 0.3
Fund investments 132.9 7.6
Equity securities 99.6 0.2
Government debt securities 32.9 —
Other assets 0.6 —
Guaranteed investments contracts 14.2 —
Total 286.0 8.1
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Plan assets are not held in company stock. The investment policies and strategies for plan assets held by defined
benefit plans include:

funding - to have sufficient assets available to pay members benefits;
Security - to maintain the minimum Funding Requirement;

Stability - to have due regard to the employer's ability in meeting contribution payments given their size and
incidence.
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Fund investments are primarily held in equity and fixed income strategies.

The following table presents the carrying value of the plan assets, including major security type for equity and debt
securities, which are measured at fair value as of December 31, 2011:
As of December 31, 2011

Quoted Prices Significant
Fair Value in Active Other Significant
$ in millions Measurements Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs (Level Inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) 2)
Cash and cash equivalents 0.2 0.2 — —
Fund investments 134.1 134.1 — —
Equity securities 107.5 107.5 — —
Government debt securities 38.1 12.1 26.0 —
Other assets 0.8 0.8 — —
Guaranteed investments contracts 13.9 — — 13.9
Total 294.6 254.7 26.0 13.9

The following table presents the carrying value of the plan assets, including major security type for equity and debt
securities, which are measured at fair value as of December 31, 2010:
As of December 31, 2010

Quoted Prices Significant
Fair Value in Active Other Significant
$ in millions Measurements Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs (Level Inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) 2)
Cash and cash equivalents 0.3 0.3 — —
Fund investments 140.5 140.5 — —
Equity securities 99.8 99.8 — —
Government debt securities 32.9 10.6 22.3 —
Other assets 0.6 0.6 — —
Guaranteed investments contracts 14.2 — — 14.2
Total 288.3 251.8 22.3 14.2

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for each major category of plan assets measured at
fair value. Information about the valuation hierarchy levels used to measure fair value is detailed in Note 3, “Fair Value
of Assets and Liabilities.”

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include cash investments in money market funds and time deposits. Cash investments in money
market funds are valued under the market approach through the use of quoted market prices in an active market, which
is the net asset value of the underlying funds, and are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Cash
investments in time deposits of $2.8 million held at December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: $5.8 million) are not
included in the table above, as they are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Time deposits are valued at
cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

Fund investments
These plan assets are primarily invested in affiliated funds and are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.
They are valued at the net asset value of shares held by the plan at year end.
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Equity securities, corporate debt securities and other investments
These plan assets are classified within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy and are valued at the closing price reported on
the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Government debt securities

Government debt securities that have a readily available market price are classified within level 1 of the valuation
hierarchy. These securities are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual
securities are traded. Government debt securities that include index-linked bonds are classified within level 2 of the
valuation hierarchy. Prices for these bonds are calculated using the relevant index ratio.

Guaranteed investment contracts
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These plan assets are classified within level 3 of the valuation hierarchy and are valued through use of unobservable
inputs by discounting the related cash flows based on current yields of similar instruments with comparable durations
considering the credit-worthiness of the issuer.

The following table shows a reconciliation of the beginning and ending fair value measurement for level 3 assets,
which is comprised solely of the guaranteed investment contracts, using significant unobservable inputs:

Year ended Year ended

$ in millions December 31, December 31,
2011 2010

Balance, beginning of year 14.2 13.9

Unrealized gains/(losses) relating to the instrument still held at the reporting 0.8 27

date ’ ’

Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements (net) (1.1 ) 2.4 )

Balance, end of year 13.9 14.2

Cash Flows

The estimated amounts of contributions expected to be paid to the plans during 2012 are $6.1 million for retirement
plans and $2.1 million for the medical plan.

There are no future annual benefits of plan participants covered by insurance contracts issued by the employer or
related parties.

The benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years and in the five fiscal years thereafter are as
follows:
Retirement

$ in millions Medical Plan
Plans

Expected benefit payments:

2012 7.8 23

2013 8.0 2.5

2014 8.4 2.7

2015 9.8 2.8

2016 9.7 29

Thereafter in the succeeding five years 62.1 15.0

14. OPERATING LEASES

The company leases office space in the majority of its locations of business under non-cancelable operating leases.
These leases and commitments expire on varying dates through 2021. Certain leases provide for renewal options and
contain escalation clauses providing for increased rent based upon maintenance, utility and tax increases.

As of December 31, 2011, the company's total future commitments by year under non-cancelable operating leases are
as follows:

$ in millions Total  Buildings Other
2012 69.4 65.0 4.4
2013 67.0 62.7 4.3
2014 66.1 61.9 4.2
2015 66.9 63.5 3.4
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2016 60.1 58.3
Thereafter 288.5 285.8
Gross lease commitments 618.0 5972
Less: future minimum payments expected to be received under non-cancelable subleases84.2 84.2
Net lease commitments 533.8 5130

1.8
2.7
20.8

20.8

As discussed in Note 1, “Accounting Policies - Security Deposit Assets and Receivables and Security Deposit
Payables,” the company is party to master lease agreements with various property owners and is party to sublease
agreements with tenants in its capacity as asset manager of property portfolios. The company's future commitments to

the property owners is equal to and offset
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by the future minimum payments expected to be received from the tenants; therefore, these amounts are not included
in the table above.

The company recognized $64.2 million, $60.1 million, and $57.5 million in operating lease expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. These expenses are net of $11.4 million,
$11.4 million and $12.8 million of sublease income in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

During 2011, the company terminated its sponsorship and associated naming rights commitments related to a sports
stadium in Denver, Colorado, resulting in a marketing expense reduction of $10.4 million recognized in the period

from the reversal of a cumulative deferred credit. The termination occurred after ten years of a twenty-year $120.0
million commitment.

15. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

The components of other gains and losses, net, are:

$ in millions 2011 2010 2009
Other gains:

Gain on sale of investments 94 9.9 59
Unrealized gain on trading investments, net — 14.2 —

Net foreign exchange gains — — 8.4
Settlement of litigation (1) 45.0 — —

Net gain generated upon debt tender offer — — 33

Total other gains 54.4 24.1 17.6
Other losses:

Other-than-temporary impairment of available-for-sale investments (1.0 ) (7.0 ) (8.2 )
Unrealized loss on trading investments, net (2.6 ) — —

Net foreign exchange losses 0.6 ) (0.2 ) —

Other realized losses (1.2 ) (1.3 ) (1.6 )
Total other losses 5.4 ) (8.5 ) (9.8 )
Other gains and losses, net 49.0 15.6 7.8

Included within other gains and losses in the year ended December 31, 2011 is a credit of $45.0 million related to
the settlement of litigation arising from the 2007 departure of certain investment professionals to a competitor.

ey

16. TAXATION

The company's (provision) for income taxes is summarized as follows:

$ in millions 2011 2010 2009

Current:

Federal 944 ) 446 ) (6.7 )

State 154 ) (9.9 ) (14 )

Foreign (108.7 ) (122.8 ) (130.3 )
(218.5 ) (177.3 ) (1384 )

Deferred:

Federal G4.1 ) (102 ) (9.2 )

State (1.1 ) 2.0 0.6 )

Foreign (124 ) (115 ) —
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676 ) (197 ) 98 )
(286.1 ) (197.0 ) (148.2 )
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The net deferred tax recognized in our balance sheet at December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively includes the

following:
$ in millions 2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred compensation arrangements 75.7 113.1
Accrued rent expenses 19.9 14.4
Tax loss carryforwards 140.9  130.1
Postretirement medical, pension and other benefits 40.4 28.2
Investment basis differences 22.9 174
Other 20.6 14.3
Total deferred tax assets 3204  317.5
Valuation allowance (140.9) (129.7 )
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 179.5 187.8
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred sales commissions (144 ) (125 )
Goodwill and Intangibles (381.4) (361.1 )
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 3.5 ) (3.1 )
Revaluation reserve 5.0 ) (5.1 )
Other (20.5 ) 4.6 )
Total deferred tax liabilities (424.8) (386.4 )
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (245.3) (198.6 )
A reconciliation between the statutory rate and the effective tax rate on income from operations for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Statutory Rate 35.0 % 35.0 % 35.0 %
Foreign jurisdiction statutory income tax rates (10.0 Y% (9.7 Yo (714 )%
State taxes, net of federal tax effect 1.5 % 1.2 % 1.4 %
Change in valuation allowance for unrecognized tax losses 1.5 % 2.3 % 4.2 %
Other 0.2 % 0.9 % (1.7 )%
(Gains)/losses attributable to noncontrolling interests 33 % (6.1 Y% 10.0 %
Effective tax rate per Consolidated Statements of Income 31.5 % 23.6 % 415 %

The company's subsidiaries operate in several taxing jurisdictions around the world, each with its own statutory
income tax rate. As a result, the blended average statutory tax rate will vary from year to year depending on the mix of
the profits and losses of the company's subsidiaries. The majority of our profits are earned in the U.S., the U.K., and
Canada. The current U.K. statutory tax rate is 26%, the Canadian statutory tax rate is 28.25% and the U.S. Federal
statutory tax rate is 35%.

The division of income/(losses) before taxes between U.S. and foreign for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 is as follows:

$ in millions (except percentages) 2011 2010 2009
U.S. 486.4 173.8 102.3
Consolidated Investment Products - U.S. 93.0 97.2 (105.5 )
Total U.S. income before income taxes 579.4 271.0 (3.2 )
Foreign 509.1 479.3 369.1
Consolidated Investment Products - Foreign (180.4 ) 83.5 (8.4 )
Total Foreign income before income taxes 328.7 562.8 360.7
Income before income taxes 908.1 833.8 357.5
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On December 14, 2007, legislation was enacted to reduce the Canadian income tax rate over five years, which
changed the rate to 33.5% in 2008 and 33.0% in 2009. The legislation was revised in December 2009, further reducing
the rate to 31.0% in 2010, 28.25% in 2011, 26.25% in 2012, 25.5% in 2013, and 25% thereafter. On July 27, 2010,
legislation was introduced to reduce the
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U.K. income tax rate to 27% on April 1, 2011. On March 29, 2011, the U.K. Parliament approved an additional 1%
decrease in the income tax rate, to 26%, effective April 1, 2011, and a further reduction to 25%, effective April 1,
2012, which was finally approved on July 19, 2011 and therefore was enacted for U.S. GAAP purposes during the
third quarter. The rate reduction did not have a material impact on our effective tax rate. Further reductions to the rate
are proposed to reduce the rate to 24% by April 1, 2013 and 23% by April 1, 2014. These reductions are expected to
be introduced in future Finance Bills for each annual reduction.

At December 31, 2011 the company had tax loss carryforwards accumulated in certain taxing jurisdictions in the
aggregate of $428.0 million (2010: $261.1 million), approximately $29.9 million of which will expire between 2011
and 2015, $100.1 million which will expire after 2015, with the remaining $298.0 million having an indefinite life. A
full valuation allowance has been recorded against the deferred tax assets related to these losses based on a history of
losses in these taxing jurisdictions which make it unlikely that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

As a multinational corporation, the company operates in various locations around the world and we generate
substantially all of our earnings from our subsidiaries. Under ASC 740-30 deferred tax liabilities are recognized for
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the company's subsidiaries, consolidated investment
products, and joint ventures, except where it is our intention to continue to indefinitely reinvest the undistributed
earnings. Our Canadian and U.S. subsidiaries continue to be directly owned by Invesco Holding Company Limited, a
U.K. company, which is directly owned by Invesco Ltd. Our Canadian unremitted earnings, for which we are
indefinitely reinvested, are estimated to be $977.2 million at December 31, 2011, compared with $963.0 million at
December 31, 2010. If distributed as a dividend, Canadian withholding tax of 5.0% would be due. Dividends from our
investment in the U.S. should not give rise to additional tax as we are not subject to withholding tax between the U.S.
and U.K. Deferred tax liabilities in the amount of $3.5 million (2010: $3.1 million) for additional tax have been
recognized for unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries that have regularly remitted earnings and are expected to
continue to remit earnings in the foreseeable future. The U.K. dividend exemption should apply to the remainder of
our U.K. subsidiary investments. There is no additional tax on dividends from the U.K. to Bermuda.

The company and its subsidiaries file annual income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various U.S. state and
local jurisdictions, and in numerous foreign jurisdictions. A number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax
position, for which the company has unrecognized tax benefits, is finally resolved. To the extent that the company has
favorable tax settlements, or determines that accrued amounts are no longer needed due to a lapse in the applicable
statute of limitations or other change in circumstances, such liabilities, as well as the related interest and penalty,
would be reversed as a reduction of income tax expense (net of federal tax effects, if applicable) in the period such
determination is made. At January 1, 2011, the company had approximately $27.1 million of gross unrecognized
income tax benefits (UTBs). Of this total, $20.1 million (net of tax benefits in other jurisdictions and the federal
benefit of state taxes) represents the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect
the effective tax rate in future periods. A reconciliation of the change in the UTB balance from January 1, 2009, to
December 31, 2011, is as follows:

Gross

$ in millions Unrecognized
Income Tax
Benefits

Balance at January 1, 2009 559

Additions for tax positions related to the current year 0.3

Additions for tax positions related to prior years 4.1

Other reductions for tax positions related to prior years 6.0 )

Reductions for statute closings (15.3 )

Balance at December 31, 2009 39.0

Additions for tax positions related to the current year —
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Additions for tax positions related to prior years

Other reductions for tax positions related to prior years
Reductions for statute closings

Balance at December 31, 2010

Additions for tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions related to prior years

Other reductions for tax positions related to prior years
Reductions for statute closings

Balance at December 31, 2011
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0.5
(13.2
27.1

1.4

5.2
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19.5
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The company recognizes accrued interest and penalties, as appropriate, related to unrecognized tax benefits as a
component of the income tax provision. At December 31, 2011, the total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits
was $19.5 million. Of this total, $14.5 million (net of tax benefits in other jurisdictions and the federal benefit of state
taxes) represents the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect the effective tax
rate in future periods. The Consolidated Balance Sheet includes accrued interest and penalties of $5.7 million at
December 31, 2011, reflecting $0.3 million of tax accrued in 2011 (year ended December 31, 2010: $5.6 million
accrued interest and penalties, $7.7 million tax benefit realized). As a result of the anticipated legislative changes and
potential settlements with taxing authorities, it is reasonably possible that the company's gross unrecognized tax
benefits balance may change within the next twelve months by a range of zero to $10.0 million. The company and its
subsidiaries are periodically examined by various taxing authorities. With few exceptions, the company is no longer
subject to income tax examinations by the primary tax authorities for years prior to 2003. Management monitors
changes in tax statutes and regulations and the issuance of judicial decisions to determine the potential impact to
uncertain income tax positions. As of December 31, 2011, management had identified no other potential subsequent
events that could have a significant impact on the unrecognized tax benefits balance.

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share is as follows:

Net Income  Weighted

Attributable ~ Average Per Share
to Common  Number of  Amount
Shareholders Shares

$ in millions, except per share data

For the year ended December 31, 2011

Basic earnings per share $729.7 462.9 $1.58
Dilutive effect of share-based awards — 1.8 —
Diluted earnings per share $729.7 464.7 $1.57
For the year ended December 31, 2010

Basic earnings per share $465.7 460.4 $1.01
Dilutive effect of share-based awards — 2.8 —
Diluted earnings per share $465.7 463.2 $1.01
For the year ended December 31, 2009

Basic earnings per share $322.5 417.2 $0.77
Dilutive effect of share-based awards — 6.4 —
Diluted earnings per share $322.5 423.6 $0.76

See Note 12, “Share-Based Compensation,” for a summary of share awards outstanding under the company's
share-based payment programs. These programs could result in the issuance of common shares that would affect the
measurement of basic and diluted earnings per share.

Options to purchase 0.1 million common shares at a weighted average exercise price of £18.11 were outstanding
during the year ended December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: 5.7 million share options at a weighted average
exercise price of £19.47; December 31, 2009: 9.6 million share options at a weighted average exercise price of
£20.30), but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the option's exercise price was
greater than the average market price of the common shares and therefore their inclusion would have been
anti-dilutive.

There were no time-vested share awards that were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share during

the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 due to their inclusion being anti-dilutive. There were no
contingently issuable shares excluded from the diluted earnings per share computation during year ended
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December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: none; December 31, 2009: 1.4 million contingently issuable shares),
because the necessary performance conditions for the shares to be issuable had not yet been satisfied at the end of the
respective period.
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18. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The company operates under one business segment, investment management. Geographical information is presented
below. There are no revenues or long-lived assets attributed to the company's country of domicile, Bermuda.

$ in millions U.S. U.K./Ireland Canada Continental Asia Total
Europe

For the year ended December 31, 2011

Revenue from external customers 2,090.2 1,473.1 372.3 38.8 117.8  4,092.2

Inter-company revenue (8.1 ) (152.8 ) (14.1 ) 76.7 98.3 —

Total operating revenues 2,082.1 1,320.3 358.2 115.5 216.1  4,092.2

Long-lived assets 196.7 81.5 7.9 4.9 21.8 312.8

For the year ended December 31, 2010

Revenue from external customers 1,680.8 1,305.8 370.7 443 86.1 3,487.7

Inter-company revenue 9.8 (131.3 ) (10.1 ) 56.3 75.3 —

Total operating revenues 1,690.6 1,174.5 360.6 100.6 161.4  3,487.7

Long-lived assets 169.3 79.6 7.6 2.8 13.1 2724

For the year ended December 31, 2009

Revenue from external customers 1,131.6 1,037.9 353.1 42.8 61.9 2,627.3

Inter-company revenue 11.0 (103.7 ) (8.8 ) 434 58.1 —

Total operating revenues 1,142.6 9342 344.3 86.2 120.0 2,627.3

Long-lived assets 127.2 75.0 7.7 3.1 7.7 220.7

Operating revenues reflect the geographical regions from which services are provided.
19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments and contingencies may arise in the ordinary course of business.

Off Balance Sheet Commitments

The company has transactions with various private equity, real estate and other investment entities sponsored by the
company for the investment of client assets in the normal course of business. Many of the company's investment
products are structured as limited partnerships. The company's investment may take the form of the general partner or
a limited partner, and the entities are structured such that each partner makes capital commitments that are to be drawn
down over the life of the partnership as investment opportunities are identified. At December 31, 2011, the company's
undrawn capital commitments were $161.2 million (December 31, 2010: $136.4 million).

During 2007, Invesco elected to enter into contingent support agreements for two of its investment trusts to enable
them to sustain a stable pricing structure. These two trusts are unregistered trusts that invest in fixed income securities
and are available only to limited types of investors. In December 31, 2011, the agreements were amended to extend
the term through June 30, 2012; further extensions are likely. As of December 31, 2011, the total committed support
under these agreements was $41.0 million with an internal approval mechanism to increase the maximum possible
support to $66.0 million at the option of the company. The estimated value of these agreements at December 31, 2011,
was $1.0 million (December 31, 2010: $2.0 million), which was recorded in other current liabilities on the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The estimated value of these agreements is lower than the maximum support amount,
reflecting management’s estimation that the likelihood of funding under the support agreements is low. Significant
investor redemptions out of the trusts before the scheduled maturity of the underlying securities or significant credit
default issues of the securities held within the trusts’ portfolios could change the company’s estimation of likelihood of
funding. No payment has been made under either agreement nor has Invesco realized any loss from the support
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agreements through the date of this Report. These trusts were not consolidated because the company was not deemed
to be the primary beneficiary.

The Parent and various company subsidiaries have entered into agreements with financial institutions to guarantee
certain obligations of other company subsidiaries. The company would be required to perform under these guarantees
in the event of certain defaults. The company has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and expects
the risk of loss to be remote.
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Legal Contingencies

In July 2010, various closed-end funds formerly advised by Van Kampen Investments or Morgan Stanley Investment
Management included in the acquired business had complaints filed against them in New York State Court
commencing derivative lawsuits purportedly brought on behalf of the common shareholders of those funds. The funds
are nominal defendants in these derivative lawsuits and the defendants also include Van Kampen Investments
(acquired by Invesco on June 1, 2010), Morgan Stanley Investment Management and certain officers and trustees of
the funds who are or were employees of those firms. Invesco has certain obligations under the applicable acquisition
agreement regarding the defense costs and any damages associated with this litigation. The plaintiffs allege breaches
of fiduciary duties owed by the non-fund defendants to the funds’ common shareholders related to the funds’
redemption in prior periods of Auction Rate Preferred Securities (ARPS) theretofore issued by the funds. The
complaints are similar to other complaints filed against investment advisers, officers and trustees of closed-end funds
in other fund complexes which issued and redeemed ARPS. The complaints allege that the advisers, distributors and
certain officers and trustees of those funds breached their fiduciary duty by redeeming ARPS at their liquidation value
when there was no obligation to do so and when the value of ARPS in the secondary marketplace were significantly
below their liquidation value. The complaints also allege that the ARPS redemptions were principally motivated by
the fund sponsors’ interests to preserve distribution relationships with brokers and other financial intermediaries who
held ARPS after having repurchased them from their own clients. The complaints do not specify alleged damages.
Certain other funds included in the acquired business have received demand letters expressing similar allegations.
Such demand letters could be precursors to additional similar lawsuits being commenced against those other funds.
The Boards of Trustees of the funds established special committees of independent trustees to conduct an inquiry
regarding the allegations set forth in the complaints and demand letters. Those evaluations have been completed, and
the Boards of Trustees of the funds accepted the recommendation of their special litigation committees to (i) reject the
demands contained in the demand letters and (i1) to seek dismissal of the related lawsuits. Motions to dismiss were
filed on October 4, 2011 and are pending.

Invesco believes the cases and other claims identified above should be dismissed or otherwise will terminate, although
there can be no assurance of that result. Invesco intends to defend vigorously any cases which may survive beyond
initial motions to dismiss. The company cannot predict with certainty, however, the eventual outcome of such cases
and other claims, nor whether they will have a material negative impact on the company. The nature and progression
of litigation can make it difficult to predict the impact a particular lawsuit will have on the company. There are many
reasons that the company cannot make these assessments, including, among others, one or more of the following: the
proceeding is in its early stages; the damages sought are unspecified, unsupportable, unexplained or uncertain; the
claimant is seeking relief other than compensatory damages; the matter presents novel legal claims or other
meaningful legal uncertainties; discovery has not started or is not complete; there are significant facts in dispute; and
there are other parties who may share in any ultimate liability.

The company is from time to time involved in litigation relating to other claims arising in the ordinary course of its
business. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of such claims will not materially affect the
company’s business, financial position, results of operation or liquidity. In management’s opinion, adequate accrual has
been made as of December 31, 2011 to provide for any such losses that may arise from matters for which the company
could reasonably estimate an amount. Furthermore, in management’s opinion, it is not possible to estimate a range of
reasonably possible losses with respect to other litigation contingencies.

The investment management industry also is subject to extensive levels of ongoing regulatory oversight and
examination. In the United States and other jurisdictions in which the company operates, governmental authorities
regularly make inquiries, hold investigations and administer market conduct examinations with respect to compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. Additional lawsuits or regulatory enforcement actions arising out of these
inquiries may in the future be filed against the company and related entities and individuals in the U.S. and other
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jurisdictions in which the company and its affiliates operate. Any material loss of investor and/or client confidence as
a result of such inquiries and/or litigation could result in a significant decline in assets under management, which
would have an adverse effect on the company’s future financial results and its ability to grow its business.

20. CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENT PRODUCTS

The company's risk with respect to each investment in consolidated investment products is limited to its equity
ownership and any uncollected management fees. Therefore, the gains or losses of consolidated investment products
have not had a significant impact on the company's results of operations, liquidity or capital resources. The company
has no right to the benefits from, nor does it bear the risks associated with, these investments, beyond the company's
minimal direct investments in, and management fees generated from, the investment products. If the company were to
liquidate, these investments would not be available to the general creditors of the company, and as a result, the
company does not consider investments held by consolidated investment products to be company assets. Additionally,
the collateral assets of consolidated collateralized loan obligations (CLOs) are held
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solely to satisfy the obligations of the CLOs, and the investors in the consolidated CLOs have no recourse to the
general credit of the company for the notes issued by the CLOs.

Collateralized Loan Obligations

A significant portion of consolidated investment products are CLOs. CLOs are investment vehicles created for the
sole purpose of issuing collateralized loan instruments that offer investors the opportunity for returns that vary with
the risk level of their investment. The notes issued by the CLOs are backed by diversified collateral asset portfolios
consisting primarily of loans or structured debt. For managing the collateral for the CLO entities, the company earns
investment management fees, including in some cases subordinated management fees, as well as contingent incentive
fees. The company has invested in certain of the entities, generally taking a portion of the unrated, junior subordinated
position. The company's investments in CLOs are generally subordinated to other interests in the entities and entitle
the company and other subordinated tranche investors to receive the residual cash flows, if any, from the entities. The
company's subordinated interest can take the form of (1) subordinated notes, (2) income notes or (3)
preference/preferred shares. The company has determined that, although the junior tranches have certain
characteristics of equity, they should be accounted for and disclosed as debt on the company's Consolidated Balance
Sheet, as the subordinated and income notes have a stated maturity indicating a date for which they are mandatorily
redeemable. The preference shares are also classified as debt, as redemption is required only upon liquidation or
termination of the CLO and not of the company.

Prior to the adoption of guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810 (discussed in Note 1, “Accounting Policies”), the
company's ownership interests, which were classified as available-for-sale investments on the company's Consolidated
Balance Sheets, combined with its other interests (management and incentive fees), were quantitatively assessed to
determine if the company is the primary beneficiary of these entities. The company determined, for periods prior to

the adoption of this guidance, that it did not absorb the majority of the expected gains or losses from the CLOs and
therefore was not their primary beneficiary.

Upon adoption of additional guidance now encompassed in ASC Topic 810, the company determined that it was the
primary beneficiary of certain CLOs, as it has the power to direct the activities of the CLOs that most significantly
impact the CLOs' economic performance, and the obligation to absorb losses/right to receive benefits from the CLOs
that could potentially be significant to the CLOs. The primary beneficiary assessment includes an analysis of the
rights of the company in its capacity as investment manager. In certain CLOs, the company's role as investment
manager provides that the company contractually has the power, as defined in ASC Topic 810, to direct the activities
of the CLOs that most significantly impact the CLOs' economic performance, such as managing the collateral
portfolio and its credit risk. In other CLOs, the company determined that it does not have this power in its role as
investment manager due to certain restrictions that limit its ability to manage the collateral portfolio and its credit risk.
Additionally, the primary beneficiary assessment includes an analysis of the company's rights to receive benefits and
obligations to absorb losses associated with its first loss position and management/incentive fees. As part of this
analysis, the company uses a quantitative model to corroborate its qualitative assessments. The quantitative model
includes an analysis of the expected performance of the CLOs and a comparison of the company's absorption of this
performance relative to the other investors in the CLOs. The company has determined that it could receive significant
benefits and/or absorb significant losses from certain CLOs in which it holds a first loss position and has the right to
significant fees. It was determined that the company's benefits and losses from certain other CLOs could not be
significant, particularly in situations where the company does not hold a first loss position and where the fee interests
are based upon a fixed percentage of collateral asset value.

Private equity, real estate and fund-of-funds (partnerships)
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For investment products that are structured as partnerships and are determined to be VIEs, including private equity
funds, real estate funds and fund-of-funds products, the company evaluates the structure of the partnership to
determine if it is the primary beneficiary of the investment product. This evaluation includes assessing the rights of the
limited partners to transfer their economic interests in the investment product. If the limited partners lack rights to
manage their economic interests, they are considered to be de facto agents of the company, resulting in the company
determining that it is the primary beneficiary of the investment product. The company generally takes less than a 1%
investment in these entities as the general partner. Non-VIE general partnership investments are deemed to be
controlled by the company and are consolidated under a voting interest entity (VOE) model, unless the limited
partners have the substantive ability to remove the general partner without cause based upon a simple majority vote or
can otherwise dissolve the partnership, or unless the limited partners have substantive participating rights over
decision-making. Interests in unconsolidated private equity funds, real estate funds and fund-of-funds products are
classified as equity method investments in the company's Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Other investment products

As discussed in Note 19, “Commitments and Contingencies,” the company has entered into contingent support
agreements for two of its investment trusts to enable them to sustain a stable pricing structure, creating variable
interests in these VIEs. The company earns management fees from the trusts and has a small investment in one of
these trusts. The company was not deemed to be the primary beneficiary of these trusts after considering any explicit
and implicit variable interests in relation to the total expected gains and losses of the trusts.

At December 31, 2011, the company's maximum risk of loss in significant VIEs in which the company is not the
primary beneficiary is presented in the table below.

Footnote Company's
$ in millions Carrying Value Maximum Risk of
Reference
Loss
Partnership and trust investments — 32.1 32.1
Investments in Invesco Mortgage Capital Inc. — 25.5 25.5
Support agreements* 19 (1.0 ) 41.0
Total 98.6

,As of December 31, 2011, the committed support under these agreements was $41.0 million with an internal
approval mechanism to increase the maximum possible support to $66.0 million at the option of the company.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, entities were consolidated due to the adoption of guidance now
encompassed in ASC Topic 810 as detailed in Note 1 - "Accounting Policies" and business combinations. As a result
of the acquisition of Morgan Stanley's retail asset management business, CLOs with total assets of $805.4 million
were consolidated as of June 1, 2010 and increased appropriated retained earnings by $149.4 million at that date. As a
result of the acquisition of AIG Asia Real Estate, certain real estate funds with total assets of $385.9 million were
consolidated at December 31, 2010 and increased equity attributable to noncontrolling interests in consolidated
entities by $363.6 million. The table below illustrates the summary balance sheet amounts related to these entities
consolidated during the year ended December 31, 2010. Balances are reflective of the amounts at the respective
consolidation dates and are before consolidation into the company. No new entities were consolidated in 2011.

Balance Sheet

For the year ended December

31,2010
$ in millions CLOs - VIEs VOEs
Current assets 281.6 96.0
Non-current assets 6,188.1 289.9
Total assets 6,469.7 385.9
Current liabilities 162.6 1.6
Non-current liabilities 5,883.4 —
Total liabilities 6,046.0 1.6
Total equity 423.7 384.3
Total liabilities and equity 6,469.7 385.9
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The following tables reflect the impact of consolidation of investment products into the Consolidated Balance Sheets
as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Summary Balance Sheet Impact of Consolidated Investment Products

Subtotal -
Impact of
$ in millions S/?EOS ?1; 8?15: VOEs  Adjustments)) Consolidated ?:If:gﬁ clLe;ttceld
Investment
Products
As of December 31, 2011
Current assets 394.5 3.1 113.7 (29.9 ) 4814 3,834.1
Non-current assets 5,682.3 42.8 903.8 (92.5 ) 6,536.4 15,5129
Total assets 6,076.8 459 1,017.5 (1224 ) 7,017.8 19,347.0
Current liabilities 179.2 0.4 5.8 (29.9 ) 1555 29744
Long—term debt of consolidated 5.563.3 o L (504 ) 55129 5.512.9
investment products
Other non-current liabilities — — — — — 1,722.1
Total liabilities 5,742.5 0.4 5.8 (80.3 ) 5,668.4 10,209.4
Retained earnings appropriated for
investors in consolidated investment 334.3 — — — 334.3 334.3
products
Other equity attributable to common o 0.1 431 2.1 ) 11 7.784.8
shareholders
Equity atributable to noncontrolling - _ 454 9686 — 10140 10185
interests in consolidated entities
Total liabilities and equity 6,076.8 459 1,017.5 (1224 ) 7,017.8 19,347.0
Subtotal -
Impact of
$ in millions \C/]ons 5 8;%6; VOEs  Adjustments(!) Consolidated ggj:gﬁ(;ﬁd
Investment
Products
As of December 31, 2010
Current assets 679.3 3.7 133.8 (22.3 ) 794.5 4,274.5
Non-current assets 6,204.6 59.6 941.3 (61.0 ) 7,144.5 16,169.6
Total assets 6,883.9 63.3 1,075.1 (833 ) 7,939.0 20,444.1
Current liabilities 500.2 0.9 7.8 (22.3 ) 486.6 3,264.5
Long—term debt of consolidated 5.888.2 o o 22.8 ) 5.865.4 5.865.4
investment products
Other non-current liabilities — — — — — 1,953.3
Total liabilities 6,388.4 0.9 7.8 (45.1 ) 6,352.0 11,083.2
Retained earnings appropriated for
investors in consolidated investment 495.5 — — — 495.5 495.5
products
Other equity attributable to common . 01 38.1 (38.2 ) — 7.769.1
shareholders
Equity attributable to noncontrolling . 623 10292 — 1.091.5 1.096.3

interests in consolidated entities
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Total liabilities and equity 6,883.9 63.3 1,075.1 (833 ) 7,939.0 20,444.1

Adjustments include the elimination of intercompany transactions between the company and its consolidated
(l)investment products, primarily the elimination of the company's equity at risk recorded as investments by the

company (before consolidation) against either equity (private equity and real estate partnership funds) or
subordinated debt (CLOs) of the funds.
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Summary Income Statement Impact of Consolidated Investment Products

Subtotal -
Impact of
$ in millions S%EOS 5 8;%? VOEs Adjustments()® Consolidated g:g:gﬁc{;ttcela
Investment
Products
Year ended December 31, 2011
Total operating revenues — — 0.1 47.3 ) 472 ) 4,092.2
Total operating expenses 46.7 1.0 126 (473 ) 13.0 3,194.1
Operating income (46.7 ) (1.0 ) (12.5) — (60.2 ) 898.1
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates — — — (0.2 ) (0.2 ) 30.5
Interest and dividend income 307.2 — — (8.3 ) 2989 318.2
Other investment income/(losses) (235.1 ) 1.0 749  20.3 (138.9 ) (89.9 )
Interest expense (195.3 ) — — 8.3 (187.0 ) (248.8 )
Income before income taxes (169.9 ) — 62.4 20.1 (87.4 ) 908.1
Income tax provision — — — — — (286.1 )
Net income (169.9 ) — 62.4 20.1 (87.4 ) 622.0
(Gains)/losses attributable to
noncontrolling interests in consolidated 169.9 — (62.3) — 107.6 107.7
entities, net
Net income attributable to common o o 01 20.1 202 7297
shareholders
Subtotal -
Impact of
$ in millions S%Eg 5 8;%? VOEs Adjustments()® Consolidated glgjssgﬁ(tﬁa
Investment
Products
Year ended December 31, 2010
Total operating revenues — — 0.3 (45.3 ) (45.0 ) 3,487.7
Total operating expenses 41.4 1.6 123 (453 ) 10.0 2,897.8
Operating income 41.4 ) (1.6 ) (12.0) — (55.0 ) 5899
Eqpi'ty in earnings of unconsolidated . o 0.6 )06 ) 402
affiliates
Interest and dividend income 246.0 — — (5.1 ) 2409 251.3
Other investment income/(losses) (3.8 ) 6.9 1045 6.4 114.0 129.6
Interest expense (123.7 ) — — 5.1 (118.6 )y (177.2 )
Income before income taxes 77.1 5.3 925 5.8 180.7 833.8
Income tax provision — — — — — (197.0 )
Net income 77.1 5.3 925 5.8 180.7 636.8
(Gains)/losses attributable to
noncontrolling interests in consolidated (77.1 ) (5.3 ) (88.4) (0.1 ) (170.9 ) (171.1 )
entities, net
Net income attributable to common o o 41 57 93 4657

shareholders
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$ in millions

Year ended December 31, 2009
Total operating revenues

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Interest and dividend income
Other investment income/(losses)
Interest expense

Income before income taxes
Income tax provision

Net income/(loss)

(Gains)/losses attributable to noncontrolling interests

in consolidated entities, net

Net income attributable to common shareholders

VIEs

0.3
1.8
1.5 )

(11.6 )

13.1 )

13.1 )
13.1

VOEs
1.6

9.6

8.0 )
(953 )
(103.3 )
(103.3 )
100.8
25 )

Adjustments® Consolidated

(7.9
(7.9

Subtotal -
Impact of

Investment
Products

(6.0
35
9.5
2.5

(106.9

(1139

(1139
113.9

)

Invesco Ltd.
Consolidated

2,627.3
2,143.0
484.3

27.0

9.8

(99.1 )
(64.5 )
357.5

(148.2 )
209.3

113.2
322.5

Invesco's equity interest in the investment products before consolidation is accounted for as equity method (private
equity and real estate partnership funds) and available-for-sale investments (CLOs). Upon consolidation of the
CLOs, the company's and the CLOs' accounting policies are effectively aligned, resulting in the reclassification of
the company's gain for the year ended December 31, 2011 of $20.3 million (representing the increase in the market

ey

value of the company's holding in the consolidated CLOs) from other comprehensive income into other
gains/losses (year ended December 31, 2010: $6.4 million). The company's gain on its investment in the CLOs

(before consolidation) eliminates with the company's share of the offsetting loss on the CLOs' debt. The net income
arising from consolidation of CLOs is therefore completely attributed to other investors in these CLOs, as the
company's share has been eliminated through consolidation. The accounting guidance now encompassed in ASC
810 was effective January 1, 2010. Prior periods were not required to be restated for the consolidation of the CLOs.
Adjustments include the elimination of intercompany transactions between the company and its consolidated
(2)investment products, primarily the elimination of management fees expensed by the funds and recorded as
operating revenues (before consolidation) by the company.
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The carrying value of investments held, derivative contracts, and notes issued by consolidated investment products is
also their fair value. The following tables present the fair value hierarchy levels of investments held, derivative
contracts, and notes issued by consolidated investment products, which are measured at fair value as of December 31,
2011 and December 31, 2010:

As of December 31, 2011

Quoted Prices . ..
. . Significant D
in Active Other Significant
. . Fair Value Markets for Unobservable
$ in millions . Observable
Measurements Identical Inputs (Level Inputs
Assets (Level P (Level 3)
2)
1)
Assets:
CLO collateral assets:
Bank loans 5,354.3 — 5,354.3 —
Bonds 292.8 — 292.8 —
Equity securities 35.3 — 353 —
CLO-related derivative assets 10.8 — 10.8 —
Private equity fund assets:
Equity securities 138.2 11.4 0.1 126.7
Debt Securities 10.0 — — 10.0
Investments in other private equity funds 559.5 — — 559.5
Debt securities issued by the U.S. Treasury 6.0 6.0 — —
Real estate investments 232.9 — — 232.9
Total assets at fair value 6,639.8 17.4 5,693.3 929.1
Liabilities:
CLO notes (5,512.9 ) — — (5,512.9 )
CLO-related derivative liabilities (5.8 ) — (5.8 ) —
Total liabilities at fair value (5,518.7 ) — (5.8 ) (5,512.9 )
As of December 31, 2010
Quoteq Prices Significant C g
in Active Other Significant
. . Fair Value = Markets for Unobservable
$ in millions . Observable
Measurementsldentical Inputs (Level
Inputs (Level
Assets (Level 3)
2)
D
Assets:
CLO collateral assets:
Bank loans 5,910.6 — 5,910.6 —
Bonds 261.1 — 261.1 —
Equity securities 32.9 — 329 —
CLO-related derivative assets 20.2 — 20.2 —
Private equity fund assets:
Equity securities 114.4 17.6 — 96.8
Investments in other private equity funds 586.1 — — 586.1
Debt securities issued by the U.S. Treasury 11.0 11.0 — —
Real estate investments 289.9 — — 289.9
Total assets at fair value 7,226.2 28.6 6,224.8 972.8
Liabilities:
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CLO notes (5,8654 ) — — (5,865.4 )
CLO-related derivative liabilities (6.6 ) — (6.6 ) —

Total liabilities at fair value (5,8720 ) — (6.6 ) (5,865.4 )
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the beginning and ending fair value measurements for level 3 assets and
liabilities using significant unobservable inputs:
Year ended December 31,  Year ended December 31,

2011 2010
$ in millions Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Level 3

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Beginning balance 972.8 (5,865.4 ) 667.1 (5,234.9 )
E;Jtr:hases, sales, issuances and settlements/prepayments, (135.4 ) 5304 81.2 ) 200.1
Acquisition of businesses — — 289.9 (630.2 )
Gains/(losses) included in the Consolidated Statement of 311 (74.1 ) 97.0 4143 )
Income**
Foreign exchange 10.6 (103.8 ) — 204.9
Ending balance 929.1 (5,512.9 ) 972.8 (5,865.4 )

Prior to the adoption of guidance included in ASU 2010-06, discussed in Note 1, “Accounting Policies,” purchases,
sales, issuances and settlements/prepayments were presented net. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the

*consolidated private equity and real estate funds recorded $52.2 million related to purchase activity and $187.6
million of sale activity, respectively, of level 3 assets. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the consolidated
CLOs recorded $530.4 million related to the settlement of level 3 liabilities.

Included in gains and losses of consolidated investment products in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of

s Income for the year ended December 31, 2011 are $24.1 million in net unrealized gains attributable to investments
still held at December 31, 2011 by consolidated investment products (year ended December 31, 2010: $46.5 million
net unrealized gains attributable to investments still held at December 31, 2010).

Fair value of consolidated CLOs

The company elected the fair value option for collateral assets held and notes issued by its consolidated CLOs to
eliminate the measurement and recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring assets and
liabilities and recognizing the related gains and losses on different accounting bases.

The collateral assets held by consolidated CLOs are primarily invested in senior secured bank loans, bonds, and equity
securities. Bank loan investments, which comprise the majority of consolidated CLO portfolio collateral, are senior
secured corporate loans from a variety of industries, including but not limited to the aerospace and defense,
broadcasting, technology, utilities, household products, healthcare, oil and gas, and finance industries. Bank loan
investments mature at various dates between 2012 and 2019, pay interest at Libor or Euribor plus a spread of up to
13.0%, and typically range in credit rating categories from BBB down to unrated. At December 31, 2011, the unpaid
principal balance exceeded the fair value of the senior secured bank loans and bonds by approximately $701.0 million
(December 31, 2010: $261.0 million excess). Less than 1% of the collateral assets are in default as of December 31,
2011 (December 31, 2010: less than 2% of the collateral assets were in default). CLO investments are valued based on
price quotations provided by a primary and secondary independent third-party pricing source. These third- party
sources aggregate indicative price quotations daily to provide the company with a price for the CLO investments. The
company has developed internal controls to review the reasonableness and completeness of these price quotations on a
daily basis. If necessary, price quotations are challenged through the third-party pricing source price challenge
process. As of December 31, 2011 there have been no price quotation challenges by the company.
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In addition, the company's internal valuation committee conducts an annual due diligence review of all independent
third-party pricing sources to review the provider's valuation methodology as well as ensure internal controls exist
over the valuation of the CLO investments. In the event that the third-party pricing source is unable to price an
investment, other relevant factors, data and information are considered, including: i) information relating to the market
for the investment, including price quotations for and trading in the investment, interest in similar investments, the
market environment, investor attitudes towards the investment and interests in similar investments; ii) the
characteristics of and fundamental analytical data relating to the investment, including, for senior secured corporate
loans, the cost, size, current interest rate, period until next interest rate reset, maturity and base lending rate, the terms
and conditions of the senior secured corporate loan and any related agreements, and the position of the senior secured
corporate loan in the borrower's debt structure; iii) the nature, adequacy and value of the senior secured corporate
loan's collateral, including the CLO's rights, remedies and interests with respect to the collateral; iv) for senior secured
corporate loans,
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the creditworthiness of the borrower, based on an evaluation of its financial condition, financial statements and
information about the business, cash flows, capital structure and future prospects; v) the reputation and financial
condition of the agent and any intermediate participants in the senior secured corporate loan; and vi) general economic
and market conditions affecting the fair value of the senior secured corporate loan.

Notes issued by consolidated CLOs mature at various dates between 2015 and 2024 and have a weighted average
maturity of 9.3 years. The notes are issued in various tranches with different risk profiles. The interest rates are
generally variable rates based on Libor or Euribor plus a pre-defined spread, which varies from 0.21% for the more
senior tranches to 7.25% for the more subordinated tranches. At December 31, 2011, the outstanding balance on the
notes issued by consolidated CLOs exceeds their fair value by approximately $1.0 billion (December 31, 2010: $1.2
billion excess). The investors in this debt are not affiliated with the company and have no recourse to the general
credit of the company for this debt. Notes issued by CLOs are recorded at fair value using an income approach, driven
by cash flows expected to be received from the portfolio collateral assets. Fair value is determined using current
information, notably market yields and projected cash flows of collateral assets based on forecasted default and
recovery rates that a market participant would use in determining the current fair value of the notes, taking into
account the overall credit quality of the issuers and the company's past experience in managing similar securities.
Market yields, default rates and recovery rates used in the company's estimate of fair value vary based on the nature of
the investments in the underlying collateral pools. In periods of rising market yields, default rates and lower debt
recovery rates, the fair value, and therefore the carrying value, of the notes may be adversely affected. The current
liquidity constraints within the market for CLO products require the use of certain unobservable inputs for CLO
valuation. Once the undiscounted cash flows of the collateral assets have been determined, the company applies
appropriate discount rates that a market participant would use, to determine the discounted cash flow valuation of the
notes.

The significant inputs used in the valuation of the notes issued by consolidated CLOs include a cumulative average
default rate between 1% and 5% and discount rates derived by utilizing the applicable forward rate curves and
appropriate spreads.

Certain consolidated CLOs with Euro-denominated debt have entered into swap agreements with various
counterparties to hedge economically interest rate and foreign exchange risk related to CLO collateral assets with
non-Euro interest rates and currencies. These swap agreements are not designated as qualifying as hedging
instruments. The fair value of derivative contracts in an asset position is included in the company's Consolidated
Balance Sheet in other current assets, and the fair value of derivative contracts in a liability position is included in the
company's Consolidated Balance Sheet in other current liabilities. These derivative contracts are valued under an
income approach using forecasted interest rates and are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. Changes
in fair value of $9.2 million are reflected as losses in gains/(losses) of consolidated investment products, net on the
company's Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: $7.9
million). At December 31, 2011, there were 70 open swap agreements with a notional value of $123.3 million
(December 31, 2010: 105 open swap agreements with a notional value of $168.4 million). Swap maturities are tied to
the maturity of the underlying collateral assets.

Fair value of consolidated private equity funds

Consolidated private equity funds are generally structured as partnerships. Generally, the investment strategy of
underlying holdings in these partnerships is to seek capital appreciation through direct investments in public or private
companies with compelling business models or ideas or through investments in partnership investments that also
invest in similar private or public companies. Various strategies may be used. Companies targeted could be distressed
organizations, targets of leveraged buyouts or fledgling companies in need of venture capital. Investors in these
consolidated investment products generally may not redeem their investment until the partnership liquidates.
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Generally, the partnerships have a life that ranges from seven to twelve years unless dissolved earlier. The general
partner may extend the partnership term up to a specified period of time as stated in the Partnership Agreement. Some
partnerships allow the limited partners to cause an earlier termination upon the occurrence of certain events as
specified in the Partnership Agreement.

For private equity partnerships, fair value is determined by reviewing each investment for the sale of additional
securities of an issuer to sophisticated investors or for investee financial conditions and fundamentals. Publicly traded
portfolio investments are carried at market value as determined by their most recent quoted sale, or if there is no
recent sale, at their most recent bid price. For these investments held by consolidated investment products, level 1
classification indicates that fair values have been determined using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets that the partnership has the ability to access. Level 2 classification may indicate that fair values have
been determined using quoted prices in active markets but give effect to certain lock-up restrictions surrounding the
holding period of the underlying investments.

The fair value of level 3 investments held by consolidated investment products are derived from inputs that are
unobservable and which reflect the limited partnerships' own determinations about the assumptions that market

participants would use in pricing
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the investments, including assumptions about risk. These inputs are developed based on the partnership's own data,
which is adjusted if information indicates that market participants would use different assumptions. The partnerships
which invest directly into private equity portfolio companies (direct private equity funds) take into account various
market conditions, subsequent rounds of financing, liquidity, financial condition, purchase multiples paid in other
comparable third-party transactions, the price of securities of other companies comparable to the portfolio company,
and operating results and other financial data of the portfolio company, as applicable.

The partnerships which invest into other private equity funds (funds of funds) take into account information received
from those underlying funds, including their reported net asset values and evidence as to their fair value approach,
including consistency of their fair value application. These investments do not trade in active markets and represent
illiquid long-term investments that generally require future capital commitments. The partnerships' reported share of
the underlying net asset values of the underlying funds is used as a practical expedient, as allowed by ASC Topic 820,
in arriving at fair value.

Unforeseen events might occur that would subsequently change the fair values of these investments, but such changes
would be inconsequential to the company due to its minimal investments in these products (and the large offsetting
noncontrolling interests resulting from their consolidation). Any gains or losses resulting from valuation changes in
these investments are substantially offset by resulting changes in gains and losses attributable to noncontrolling
interests in consolidated entities and therefore do not have a material effect on the financial condition, operating
results (including earnings per share), liquidity or capital resources of the company's common shareholders.

Fair value of consolidated real estate funds

Consolidated real estate funds are structured as limited liability companies. These limited liability companies invest in
other real estate funds, and these investments are carried at fair value and presented as investments in consolidated
investment products. The net asset value of the underlying funds, which primarily consists of the real estate
investment value and mortgage loans, is adjusted to fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Real estate fund assets are classified within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Due to the illiquid nature of investments made in real estate
companies, all of the real estate fund assets are classified as Level 3. The real estate funds use one or more valuation
techniques (e.g., the market approach, the income approach, or the cost approach) for which sufficient and reliable
data is available to value investments classified within Level 3. The income approach generally consists of the net
present value of estimated future cash flows, adjusted as appropriate for liquidity, credit, market and/or other risk
factors.

The inputs used by the real estate funds in estimating the value of Level 3 investments include the original transaction
price, recent transactions in the same or similar instruments, as well as completed or pending third-party transactions
in the underlying investment or comparable investments. Level 3 investments may also be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/or non-transferability. Other inputs used include discount rates, cap rates and income and expense
assumptions. The fair value measurement of Level 3 investments does not include transaction costs and acquisition
fees that may have been capitalized as part of the investment's cost basis. Due to the lack of observable inputs, the
assumptions used may significantly impact the resulting fair value and therefore the real estate funds' results of
operations.

21. GUARANTOR CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Invesco Holding Company Limited, the Issuer and a subsidiary of Invesco Ltd. (the Parent), issued 5.625% $300
million senior notes due 2012, 5.375% $350 million senior notes due 2013, and 5.375% $200 million senior notes due
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2014. (See Note 9, "Debt," for outstanding balances at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.) These senior
notes, are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to payment of principal, interest and any other amounts due thereon
by the Parent, together with the following 100% owned subsidiaries: Invesco Management Group, Inc., Invesco
Adpvisers, Inc., IVZ Inc., and Invesco North American Holdings, Inc. (the Guarantors). The company’s remaining
consolidated subsidiaries do not guarantee this debt. The guarantees of each of the Guarantors are joint and several.
Presented below are Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, Condensed
Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, and
Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

The Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets, Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income, and Condensed
Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows included in this footnote have been revised from the disclosure provided in
the company's Form 10-K filed on February 24, 2012 to conform to the requirements of Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X.
The revised disclosure presents the line items of the Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets, Condensed
Consolidating Statements of
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Income, and Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows at a more disaggregated level than that which was
previously presented. In the prior disclosure, all intercompany receivable and payable balances were presented net
between current and non-current liabilities on the Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets. The revised presentation
grosses up the intercompany balances and presents them as current and non-current intercompany receivables and
payables. In the prior disclosure, all intercompany revenue and expense sharing arrangements were presented on a net
basis on the Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income. The revised presentation grosses up the intercompany
balances and presents them separately as revenues and expenses. In the prior disclosure, certain intercompany loan,
capital, and dividend activity was incorrectly classified in the Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows.
The revised presentation corrects the classification of these amounts as cash flows from financing activities on the
Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows.

These corrections to the presentation had no impact to the company's consolidated net income attributable to common
shareholders, earnings per share or retained earnings. They did not have any impact on the total equity of the
Guarantors, non-Guarantors, Issuer, or Parent entities, nor did these changes impact the non-intercompany balances.
These corrections to the presentation had no impact on any liquidity measures of the company, nor did they impact
ratios based on the company's balance sheet or income statement. They did not alter the net increase or decrease in
cash for the Guarantors, non-Guarantors, Issuer, or Parent entities. There was no impact to the company's loan
covenants as a result of these corrections.

The impact of the corrections on the affected condensed consolidating financial statement captions as previously
reported in the Company's Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011 is quantified in the tables below.
Impact of Revision on Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

Guarantors Non-Guarantors Issuer Parent Adjustments Consolidated
$ in millions
December 31, 2011
Increase/(decrease) in current 437 5 4218 34.8 . (944.1 ) —
assets
ir;cstzet::se/(decrease) in non current 345.3 1.438.2 5678 o 23513 ) —
Increase/(decrease) in assets 832.8 1,860.0 602.6 — (3,2954 ) —
Inerease/(decrease) in current 377 507.9 299 293 9441 ) —
liabilities
Inerease/(decrease) in non current 55 o 1352.1 5727 (293 ) (23513 ) —
liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities 832.8 1,860.0 602.6 — (3,2954 ) —
Increase/(decrease) in equity — — — — — —
December 31, 2010
Increase/(decrease) in current 3087 363.0 1572 . (848.9 ) —
assets
ir;g::se/(decrease) in non current 101 1.393.0 5678 o (19709 ) —
Increase/(decrease) in assets 338.8 1,756.0 725.0 — 2,819.8 ) —
Inereasef(decrease) in current 5 7 316.5 49.8 1719 (8489 ) —
liabilities
Increasef(decrease) in non curtent g | 1,439.5 6752 (1719 ) (19709 ) —
liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities 338.8 1,756.0 725.0 — 2,819.8 ) —

Increase/(decrease) in equity — — — — — —
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Impact of Revision on Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income

Guarantors Non-Guarantors Issuer Parent Adjustments Consolidated
$ in millions
December 31, 2011
Increase/(decrease) in operating
revenues
Increase/(decrease) in operating
expenses

— 203.4 — — (2034 ) —

— 203.4 — — (203.4 ) —

December 31, 2010
Increase/(decrease) in operating
revenues

Increase/(decrease) in operating
expenses

— 180.3 — — (180.3 ) —

— 180.3 — — (180.3 ) —

December 31, 2009
Increase/(decrease) in operating
revenues

Increase/(decrease) in operating
expenses

— 68.3 4.7 — (73.0 ) —

— 68.3 4.7 — (73.0 ) —
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Impact of Revision on Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Guarantors Non-Guarantors Issuer Parent Adjustments Consolidated
$ in millions
Year ended December 31, 2011
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by operating activities:
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by investing activities:
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by financing activities:
Total change in (decrease)/increase
in cash and cash equivalents:

183.9 136.6 1.8 (261.3 ) (61.0 ) —
— (80.6 ) (610 ) — 141.6 —

(183.9 ) (56.0 ) 592 261.3 (80.6 ) —

Year ended December 31, 2010
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by operating activities:
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by investing activities:
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by financing activities:
Total change in (decrease)/increase
in cash and cash equivalents:

213.7 (116.1 ) (657 ) 230 (54.9 ) —
— (262.4 ) @379 ) (17.0 ) 3173 —

(213.7 ) 3785 103.6 6.0 ) (2624 ) —

Year ended December 31, 2009
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by operating activities:
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by investing activities:
Total change in net cash (used
in)/provided by financing activities:
Total change in (decrease)/increase
in cash and cash equivalents:

(196.8 ) 526.0 208 ) (24 ) @060 ) —
0.2 ) 542 01 ) — (53.9 ) —

197.0 (580.2 ) 209 24 359.9 —
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Revised Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

$ in millions Guarantors Non-GuarantorsIssuer ~ Parent  Adjustments Consolidated
As of December 31, 2011
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 20.6 703.2 3.1 0.5 — 727.4
Cash and cash equivalents of
consolidated investment products o 382.3 o o o 382.3
Unsettled fund receivables — 444 4 — — — 444 .4
Accounts receivable 163.6 260.8 — — — 424 .4
. Accounts receivable of consolidated . 08.5 . L o 98.5
investment products
Investments 4.2 266.2 — 13.3 — 283.7
Prepaid assets 9.7 41.5 — — — 51.2
Other current assets 39.3 120.3 1.1 0.2 (10.9 ) 150.0
Deferred tax asset, net 18.9 9.8 — — — 28.7
Assets held for policyholders — 1,243.5 — — — 1,243.5
Intercompany receivables 471.0 421.4 34.8 — (933.2 ) —
Total current assets 733.3 3,991.9 39.0 14.0 944.1 ) 3,834.1
Non-current assets:
Investments 50.0 144.4 34 3.0 — 200.8
Investments of consolidated investment o 6.629.0 . L o 6.629.0
products
Security deposit assets and receivables — 81.2 — — — 81.2
Other non-current assets 8.5 6.6 2.8 — — 17.9
Deferred sales commissions 13.9 26.6 — — — 40.5
Property and equipment, net 145.3 167.5 — — — 312.8
Intangible assets, net 420.6 902.2 — — — 1,322.8
Goodwill 2,312.8 4,161.8 433.3 — — 6,907.9
Intercompany receivables 333.0 1,450.5 567.8 — 2,351.3 ) —
Investment in subsidiaries 1,228.2 5.6 5,116.3 8,465.0 (14,8151 ) —
Total non-current assets 4,512.3 13,575.4 6,123.6 8,468.0 (17,166.4 ) 15,512.9
Total assets 5,245.6 17,567.3 6,162.6 8,482.0 (18,110.5 ) 19,347.0
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of total debt — — 215.1 — — 215.1
Unsettled fund payables — 439.6 — — — 439.6
Income taxes payable — 63.1 7.4 — (10.9 ) 59.6
Other current liabilities 144.3 685.4 11.1 0.7 — 841.5
. Other current liabilities of consolidated o 175.1 . . o 175.1
investment products
Policyholder payables — 1,243.5 — — — 1,243.5
Intercompany payables 366.5 507.5 29.9 29.3 (933.2 ) —
Total current liabilities 510.8 3,114.2 263.5 30.0 (944.1 ) 2,974.4
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt 539.0 — 530.6 — — 1,069.6
. Long-term debt of consolidated o 5.512.9 . . o 5.512.9
investment products
Deferred tax liabilities, net 29.6 244 .4 — — — 274.0
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Security deposits payable — 81.2 — — — 81.2
Other non-current liabilities 55.1 242.2 — — — 297.3
Intercompany payables 1,361.8  — 656.6 332.9 2,3513 ) —
Total non-current liabilities 1,985.5 6,080.7 1,187.2 332.9 (2,351.3 ) 7,235.0
Total liabilities 2,496.3  9,194.9 1,450.7 362.9 (3,2954 ) 10,209.4
Equity:
Total equity attributable to common 2,7493  7,353.9 47119 8119.1 (148151 ) 8,119.1
shareholders
Equlty at.trlbutable. to nonco'nFrolhng . 1.018.5 . L o 1.018.5
interests in consolidated entities
Total equity 2,749.3  8,372.4 4,711.9 §,119.1 (14,815.1 ) 9,137.6
Total liabilities and equity 5,245.6 17,567.3 6,162.6 8,482.0 (18,1105 ) 19,347.0
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Revised Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets (continued)

$ in millions Guarantors Non-Guarantorslssuer ~ Parent  Adjustments Consolidated
As of December 31, 2010
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 12.4 725.9 1.1 1.1 — 740.5
. Cash and cash equivalents of consolidated 636.7 . . o 636.7
investment products
Unsettled fund receivables — 5134 — — — 5134
Accounts receivable 100.5 324.2 — — — 4247
. Accounts receivable of consolidated . 158.8 . . o 158.8
investment products
Investments 7.4 269.5 — 31.9 — 308.8
Prepaid assets 9.6 54.4 — — — 64.0
Other current assets 39.6 67.9 6.1 0.7 (12.5 ) 101.8
Deferred tax asset, net 14.6 15.8 — — — 30.4
Assets held for policyholders — 1,295.4 — — — 1,295.4
Intercompany receivables 320.3 363.1 153.0 — (836.4 ) —
Total current assets 504.4 4,425.1 160.2 33.7 (848.9 ) 4,274.5
Non-current assets:
Investments 353 125.0 1.7 2.4 — 164.4
Investments of consolidated investment . 7.206.0 . . o 7.206.0
products
Security deposit assets and receivables — 146.3 — — — 146.3
Other non-current assets 2.8 14.8 2.8 0.5 — 20.9
Deferred sales commissions 12.2 30.0 — — — 422
Property and equipment, net 122.9 149.5 — — — 2724
Intangible assets, net 393.9 943.3 — — — 1,337.2
Goodwill 2,322.9  4,216.5 440.8 — — 6,980.2
Intercompany receivables — 1,403.1 567.8 — (1,9709 ) —
Investment in subsidiaries 1,333.8 5.5 4,766.1 8,400.6 (14,506.0 ) —
Total non-current assets 4,223.8 14,240.0 5,779.2 8,403.5 (16,476.9 ) 16,169.6
Total assets 4,728.2 18,665.1 5,939.4 8,437.2 (17,325.8 ) 20,444.1
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Unsettled fund payables — 504.8 — — — 504.8
Income taxes payable — 84.7 — — (12.5 ) 72.2
Other current liabilities 120.9 774.5 9.6 0.7 — 905.7
. Other current liabilities of consolidated . 486 4 . . o 486 4
investment products
Policyholder payables — 1,295.4 — — — 1,295.4
Intercompany payables 302.3 316.5 45.7 1719  (836.4 ) —
Total current liabilities 423.2 3,462.3 55.3 172.6 (848.9 ) 3,264.5
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt 570.0 — 745.7 — — 1,315.7
Long-term debt of consolidated investment 5.865.4 . . o 5.865.4
products
Deferred tax liabilities, net 10.1 218.9 — — — 229.0
Security deposits payable — 146.3 — — — 146.3
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Other non-current liabilities
Intercompany payables
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity:
Total equity attributable to common
shareholders
Equity attributable to noncontrolling
interests in consolidated entities
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity
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27.0

1,317.8
1,924.9
2,348.1

2,380.1

2,380.1
4,728.2

2353 —

— 653.1
6,465.9 1,398.8
9,928.2 1,454.1
7,640.6 4,485.3
1,096.3 —
8,736.9 4,485.3
18,665.1 5,9394

— — 262.3
— (1,9709 ) —

— (1,970.9 ) 7,818.7
1726  (2,819.8 ) 11,083.2

8,264.6 (14,506.0 ) 8,264.6

— — 1,096.3

8,264.6 (14,506.0 ) 9,360.9
8,437.2 (17,325.8 ) 20,444.1
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Revised Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income

$ in millions Guarantors Non-Guarantorslssuer ~ Parent ~ Adjustments Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2011

Operating Revenues:

Investment management fees 1,153.9 1,984.6 — — — 3,138.5
Service and distribution fees 91.9 688.4 — — — 780.3
Performance fees 114 26.5 — — — 37.9

Other 15.2 120.3 — — — 135.5
Intercompany Revenues 27.1 176.3 — — (2034 ) —

Total operating revenues 1,299.5 2,996.1 — — (203.4 ) 4,092.2
Operating expenses:

Employee compensation 341.5 897.5 — 7.2 — 1,246.2
Thlrd—party distribution, service and 20.7 1.192.8 o o o 1.282.5
advisory

Marketing 5.1 80.9 — — — 86.0
Property, office and technology 105.1 148.8 — 0.7 — 254.6
General and administrative 81.5 207.7 — 6.2 — 295.4
Transaction and integration — 294 — — — 29.4
Intercompany Expenses 175.8 27.1 — 0.5 (2034 ) —

Total operating expenses 798.7 2,584.2 — 14.6 (2034 ) 3,194.1
Operating income/(loss) 500.8 411.9 — (146 ) — 898.1
Other income/(expense):

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated 04 ) 296 4539 7451  (1,197.7 ) 30.5
affiliates

Interest and dividend income 3.5 87.2 49.3 0.9 (129.9 ) 11.0
Interest income of consolidated investment o 3072 o o o 3072
products

cher gains/(losses) of consolidated o (138.9 ) — o o (138.9 )
investment products, net

Interest expense (136.3 ) (1.0 ) (503 ) 4.1 ) 129.9 (61.8 )
Interest expense of consolidated investment (187.0 ) — o o (187.0 )
products

Other gains and losses, net 44.6 34 (1.4 ) 2.4 — 49.0
Income before income taxes 412.2 512.4 451.5 729.7 (1,197.7 ) 908.1
Income tax provision (111.5 ) (161.0 ) (136 ) — — (286.1 )
Net income 300.7 3514 437.9 729.7 (1,197.7 ) 622.0
(Gains)/losses attributable to

noncontrolling interests in consolidated ~ — 107.7 — — — 107.7
entities, net

Net income attributable to common 3007 459.1 4379 7297 (1,197.7 ) 729.7

shareholders
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Revised Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income (continued)

$ in millions Guarantors Non-GuarantorsIssuer ~ Parent  Adjustments Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2010

Operating Revenues:

Investment management fees 906.0 1,814.9 — — — 2,720.9
Service and distribution fees 86.5 559.0 — — — 645.5
Performance fees 2.4 23.7 — — — 26.1

Other 4.1 91.1 — — — 95.2
Intercompany Revenues 32.6 147.7 — — (180.3 —

Total operating revenues 1,031.6 2,636.4 — — (180.3 3,487.7
Operating expenses:

Employee compensation 311.9 796.6 — 6.4 — 1,114.9
Thu.rd—party distribution, service and 428 10110 o o . 1.053.8
advisory

Marketing 35.6 42.8 — 0.1 — 78.5
Property, office and technology 107.2 130.4 — 0.8 — 238.4
General and administrative 97.5 157.1 — 7.6 — 262.2
Transaction and integration — 150.0 — — — 150.0
Intercompany Expenses 147.4 32.6 — 0.3 (180.3 —

Total operating expenses 742.4 2,320.5 — 15.2 (180.3 2,897.8
Operating income/(loss) 289.2 315.9 — (152 ) — 589.9
Other income/(expense):

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated 5.7 33.4 2665 4773 (7427 ) 402
affiliates

Interest and dividend income 0.6 96.7 17.4 13.4 (117.7 10.4
Interest income of consolidated investment o 240.9 . . o 2409
products

cher gains/(losses) of consolidated o 114.0 . o o 114.0
investment products, net

Interest expense (113.3 (1.8 (60.1 ) (1.1 ) 117.7 (58.6 )
Interest expense of consolidated investment (118.6 . . o (118.6 )
products

Other gains and losses, net 2.9 16.6 0.8 4.7 ) — 15.6
Income before income taxes 185.1 697.1 224.6 469.7 (742.7 833.8
Income tax provision (66.1 ) (129.2 2.3 4.0 ) — (197.0 )
Net income 119.0 567.9 226.9 465.7 (742.7 636.8
.(Gains)/lf)sses attr.ibutable tg poncontrolling_ (171.1 . o o (71.1 )
interests in consolidated entities, net

Net income attributable to common 1190 3968 269 4657 (7427 ) 465.7

shareholders
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Revised Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income (continued)
Guarantors Non-GuarantorsIssuer

$ in millions

Year ended December 31, 2009
Operating Revenues:
Investment management fees
Service and distribution fees
Performance fees

Other

Intercompany Revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:

Employee compensation
Third-party distribution, service and
advisory

Marketing

Property, office and technology
General and administrative
Transaction and integration
Intercompany Expenses

Total operating expenses
Operating income/(loss)

Other income/(expense):
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates

Interest and dividend income

Interest income of consolidated investment

products

Other gains/(losses) of consolidated
investment products, net

Interest expense

Interest expense of consolidated investment

products

Other gains and losses, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision

Net income

482.0
49.0
0.2
24
16.1
549.7

214.5
3.2

23.8
52.8
81.5

56.3
432.1
117.6

17.1
0.7

0.4
(519

0.6
82.5
0.2
82.3

(Gains)/losses attributable to noncontrolling_

interests in consolidated entities, net
Net income attributable to common
shareholders

70

82.3

1,638.2
363.6
29.8
62.1
52.2
2,145.9

729.5

733.8

41.5
159.2
78.7
10.8
16.1
1,769.6
376.3

533
42.5

) (125.6
) (0.2

) 1.0
347.3

) (136.5
210.8

113.2

324.0

148.3
12.8

215
(68.1

54

123.2
1L.s
111.7

111.7
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)

Parent

0.6
12.9
(12.9

326.3
9.5

(2.4

2.0
3225

3225

322.5

)

Adjustments Consolidated

(73.0
(73.0

(518.0
(55.7

(518.0

(518.0

(518.0

)

)

)
)

)

2,120.2
412.6
30.0
64.5

2,627.3

950.8
737.0

65.3
212.3
166.8
10.8

2,143.0
484.3

27.0
9.8

(106.9 )
(64.5 )

7.8

357.5
(148.2 )
209.3

113.2

322.5

124



Edgar Filing: Invesco Ltd. - Form 10-K/A

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income

$ in millions Guarantors Non-Guarantorslssuer Parent  Adjustments Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2011
Net income 300.7 351.4 4379 729.7 (1,197.7 ) 622.0

Other comprehensive income, before tax:
Currency translation differences on

investments in overseas subsidiaries 99 (587 ) — o o (4838 )
Change in accumulated other comprehensive
income related to employee benefit plans 0-9 (433 ) — o o (424 )
Change in accumulated other comprehensive
income of equity method investments ©.2 ) 7.0 ) — o o (7.2 )
Comprehensive income of subsidiaries — 9.5 (40.4 ) (117.7 ) 148.6 —
Change in net unrealized gains on
available-for-sale investments (1.6 ) (62 ) — SE (12.3 )
tCe)l;her comprehensive income (loss), before 9.0 (105.7 ) (404 ) (122.2 ) 148.6 (1107 )
Income tax related to items of other
comprehensive income:
Tax benefit (expense) on foreign currency

. . — 0.5 — — — 0.5
translation adjustments
Tax benefit (expense) on comprehensive
. . 9.3 — — — 9.3
income related to employee benefit plans
Tax benefit (expense) on change in net
unrealized gains on available-for-sale 0.5 1.3 — — — 1.8
investments
Total income tax benefit (expense) related to
) L 0.5 11.1 — — — 11.6
items of other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 9.5 (94.6 ) (404 ) (122.2 ) 148.6 (99.1 )
Total comprehensive income 310.2 256.8 397.5 607.5 (1,049.1 ) 5229
Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests in consolidated — 84.6 — — — 84.6
entities
Comprehensive income attributable to 3102 341 4 3975 6075 (1.049.1 ) 607.5

common shareholders
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income (continued)

$ in millions Guarantors Non-GuarantorsIssuer Parent Adjustments Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2010
Net income 119.0 567.9 226.9 465.7 (74277 ) 636.8

Other comprehensive income, before tax:
Currency translation differences on

) . e — 77.3 — — — 77.3
investments in overseas subsidiaries

Change in accumulated other comprehensive

. , — 18.7 — — — 18.7
income related to employee benefit plans

Change in accumulated other comprehensive

. . . — 2.9 — — — 2.9

income of equity method investments

Comprehensive income of subsidiaries — 0.1 106.7 93.8 (200.6 ) —

Change in net unrealized gains on

available-for-sale investments 0.2 (3.6 ) — 13.3 o 9.9

Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 0.2 95.4 106.7 107.1 (200.6 ) 108.8
Income tax related to items of other

comprehensive income:

Tax benefit (expense) on comprehensive o 62 ) — o L 62 )
income related to employee benefit plans ’ '

Tax benefit (expense) on change in net

unrealized gains on available-for-sale (0.1 ) (0.7 ) — — — (0.8 )
investments

Total income tax benefit (e‘xpe.nse) related to 0.1 ) (6.9 ) — o o (7.0 )
items of other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 0.1 88.5 106.7 107.1 (200.6 ) 101.8

Total comprehensive income 119.1 656.4 333.6 572.8 (943.3 ) 738.6
Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to

noncontrolling interests in consolidated — (165.8 ) — — — (165.8 )
entities

Comprehensive income attributable to 1191 4906 333.6 572.8 (9433 ) 572.8

common shareholders
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive Income (continued)

$ in millions Guarantors Non-Guarantorslssuer Parent Adjustments Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2009
Net income 82.3 210.8 111.7 3225 (518.0 ) 209.3

Other comprehensive income, before tax:
Currency translation differences on

. . AP (19.5 ) 507.8 — — — 488.3
investments in overseas subsidiaries

Change in accumulated other comprehensive

income related to employee benefit plans 36 (187 ) — o o (15.1 )
Comprehensive income of subsidiaries — (11.3 ) 3072 4823 (778.2 ) —

Change in net unrealized gains on

available-for-sale investments (1.0 ) 85 o 71 o 146
Adoption of guidance now encompassed in

ASC Topic 320 (1.5 ) — o o (1.5 )
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax (16.9 ) 484.8 307.2 4894 (778.2 ) 486.3
Income tax related to items of other

comprehensive income:

Tax ber}efit (gxpense) on foreign currency 70 63 ) — . . 0.7
translation adjustments

Tax benefit (expense) on comprehensive

) : 1.1 ) 5.2 — — — 4.1

income related to employee benefit plans

Tax benefit (expense) on change in net

unrealized gains on available-for-sale 0.3 ) (1.4 ) — — — (1.7 )
investments

Total income tax benefit (expense) related to

. o 5.6 2.5 ) — — — 3.1

items of other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (11.3 ) 482.3 307.2 489.4 (778.2 ) 489.4

Total comprehensive income 71.0 693.1 4189 8119 (1,296.2 ) 698.7
Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to

noncontrolling interests in consolidated — 113.2 — — — 113.2
entities

Comprehensive income attributable to 710 206.3 4189 8119 (12962 ) 8119

common shareholders
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Revised Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

$ in millions Guarantors Non-Guarantorslssuer ~ Parent  AdjustmentsConsolidated
Year ended December 31, 2011
Operating activities:

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating

- 299.6 673.4 57.3 380.0 (4545 ) 964.8
activities
Investing activities:
Capital contribution (to)/from subsidiary — — (116.0 ) (23.1 ) 139.1 —
Purchase of investments by consolidated . 29914 ) — o o (2.991.4 )
investment products
Procee‘ds frorp sale of investments by . 3.369.8 . o o 3.369.8
consolidated investment products
Returns of capital in investments of
consolidated investment products o 109.2 o o o 109.2
Purchase of other investments (29.0 ) (114.4 ) — — — (143.4 )
Otl}e.r pet increases/(decreases) in investing (475 ) 33.1 15 16.8 o 3.9
activities
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing ;¢ 5y 456 3 (1145 ) (63 ) 139.1 348.1
activities
Financing activities:
Capital contribution from/(to) parent 116.0 23.1 — — (139.1 ) —
Purchases of treasury shares — — — 436.5 ) — (436.5 )
Dividends paid — (406.3 ) (484 ) (220.6 ) 4545 (220.8 )
Capital invested into consolidated investment 372 o o . 372
products
Capltal distributed by consolidated . (172.4 ) — o . (172.4 )
investment products
Net borrowings/(repayments) of debt of
consolidated investment products o (513.3 ) — o o (513.3 )
Net. l?orr0w1ngs/(repayments) under credit G10 ) — o o . (31.0 )
facility
Net intercompany borrowings/(repayments) (299.9 ) (69.1 )y 1077 2613 — —
Otl}e.r pet increases/(decreases) in financing )3 01 ) 125 . 147
activities
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing 149y (10935 ) 592 (3833 ) 3154 (1322.1 )
activities
(De.crease)/mcrease in cash and cash 32 (18.8 ) 2.0 06 ) — ©2 )
equivalents
Foreign §xchange movement on cash and o 3.9 ) — o o (3.9 )
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 12.4 725.9 1.1 1.1 — 740.5
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 20.6 703.2 3.1 0.5 — 727.4
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Revised Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

$ in millions

Year ended December 31, 2010
Operating activities:

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities

Investing activities:

Capital contribution (to)/from subsidiary
Purchase of investments by consolidated
investment products

Proceeds from sale of investments by
consolidated investment products
Returns of capital in investments of
consolidated investment products
Purchase of other investments
Acquisition of businesses

Other net increases/(decreases) in investing

activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing
activities

Financing activities:

Capital contribution from/(to) parent
Purchases of treasury shares

Dividends paid

Capital invested into consolidated investment

products

Capital distributed by consolidated
investment products

Net borrowings/(repayments) of debt of
consolidated investment products

Net borrowings/(repayments) under credit
facility

Guarantors Non-GuarantorsIssuer

298.1

570.0

Net intercompany borrowings/(repayments) (310.9

Other net increases/(decreases) in financing

activities

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing
activities

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Foreign exchange movement on cash and
cash equivalents

356.3

(88.0

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 100.4

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

12.4

103.7
(2,367.7
2,784.8

81.5

(49.1
(75.1

28.4

402.8

(2554

(199.4
243

972

(207.3

2759
14.9

(444.2
62.3

3.0

660.6
725.9

)

73 )

972 )

1.8

954 )

62.7

40.9

103.6

0.9

0.2
1.1

Parent

184.1

192.7

192.7

(192.2 )
(197.9 )

59 )
19.5

(376.5 )

0.3

0.8
1.1

AdjustmentsConsolidated

(199.4 ) 379.2

955 ) —

— (2,367.7 )
— 2,784.8
— 81.5

— 694 )
— (749.6 )
— (174 )

(95.5 ) (337.8 )

95.5 —
— (1922 )
199.4 (197.9 )
— 243
— 972 )
— (207.3 )
— 570.0
— 34.4
294.9 659 )
— (24.5 )
— 3.0
— 762.0
— 740.5
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Revised Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
$ in millions Guarantors Non-Guarantorslssuer

Year ended December 31, 2009
Operating activities:

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities

Investing activities:

Capital contribution (to)/from subsidiary —
Purchase of investments by consolidated
investment products

Proceeds from sale of investments by

consolidated investment products

Returns of capital in investments of

consolidated investment products

Purchase of other investments (6.1
Proceeds from sale of investments 0.5
Other net increases/(decreases) in investing (207
activities '
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing
activities

Financing activities:

Capital contribution from/(to) parent 173.3
Purchases of treasury shares —
Issuance of new shares —
Proceeds from exercises of share options —
Dividends paid —
Capital invested into consolidated investment
products

Capital distributed by consolidated

investment products

Net borrowings/(repayments) under credit

facility

Repayments of senior notes —
Net intercompany borrowings/(repayments) (434.6
Other net increases/(decreases) in financing
activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing
activities

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Foreign exchange movement on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 422.4
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 100.4

(34.4

(26.3

(261.3

(322.0

) 344.0

(44.1
34.2

17.9

) (82.4
22.3

) (33.0

) (85.1

538.0

(143.2
7.2

(52.1

) (126.8
0.4

) 223.5
) 482.4

17.2

161.0
660.6

(19.8

Parent

) 216.1

Adjustments Consolidated

(1432 )

(173.3 ) (538.0 ) 711.3

2782 —
1049 (5380 )
— (269.2 )
— 4418
— 80.0

— (168.9 )
(120 ) —
(397.2 ) —
3225 2389
0.1 —
(86.6 ) 322.6
(15 )07

1.7 0.1

0.2 0.8

(2692 )
4421
(711.3 )
269.2
143.2
(2989 )

362.7

(44.1
34.2

17.9

(88.5
31.8

(53.7

(102.4

441.8
80.0
(168.9

72
(52.1

(12.0
(397.2

0.5
(100.7
159.6

17.2

585.2
762.0
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22. RELATED PARTIES
Certain managed funds are deemed to be affiliated entities under the related party definition in ASC 850, "Related
Party Disclosures." Additionally, related parties include those defined in the company's currently effective proxy

statement.

Years ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
$ in millions
Affiliated operating revenues:
Investment management fees 2,694.3 2,349.0 1,913.5
Service and distribution fees 779.7 645.0 412.1
Performance fees 33.0 22.1 18.6
Other 128.9 93.3 63.0
Total affiliated operating revenues 3,635.9 3,109.4 2,407.2

As of December 31,

$ in millions 2011 2010
Affiliated asset balances:
Cash equivalents 257.7 289.6
Unsettled fund receivables 178.8 157.0
Accounts receivable 247.8 261.2
Current investments 248.9 269.0
Assets held for policyholders 1,243.1 1,295.0
Other current assets 22.1 25.4
Non-current investments 184.5 162.2
Other non-current assets 1.9 1.6
Affiliated asset balances 2,384.8 2,461.0
Affiliated liability balances:
Unsettled fund payables 205.0 226.1
Other current liabilities 63.5 55.1
Other non-current liabilities 191.6 143.7
Affiliated liability balances 460.1 424.9

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 26, 2012, the company declared a fourth quarter 2011 dividend of $0.1225 per share, payable on March 9,
2012, to shareholders of record at the close of business on February 23, 2012.

On February 23, 2012, the company received notification from the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) of its intent to
assess a company subsidiary related to various prior taxation periods for goods and services tax on revenue for which
management fee rebates had been applied in those periods. The estimated assessment, related interest, and penalty
amounts are expected to be approximately $20 million. Management believes that the CRA's claims are unfounded
and that these assessments are unlikely to stand, and accordingly no provision has been recorded in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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24. ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS UPDATE 2011-05

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income: Presentation of
Comprehensive Income” (ASU 2011-05). ASU 2011-05 amends Topic 220 to require the components of net income
and other comprehensive income to be presented in one continuous statement, which would be referred to as the
statement of comprehensive income, or in two separate but consecutive statements. ASU 2011-05 also required an
entity to present on the face of the financial statements reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified from
other comprehensive income to net income alongside their respective components of net income and other
comprehensive income. This requirement in ASU 2011-05 was amended and deferred in December 2011, when the
FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-12, “Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive income in Accounting Standards
Update No. 2011-05” (ASU 2011-12). As a result of ASU 2011-12, an entity will continue to report items that are
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income consistent with the requirements in Topic 220 in effect
before the adoption of ASU 2011-05. The amendments to Topic 220 made by ASU 2011-05 and the amendments to
ASU 2011-05 made by ASU 2011-12 became effective for the company beginning January 1, 2012 and required
retrospective adoption. As such, these presentation changes have been retrospectively applied to the financial
statements included in this Form 10-K/A.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a)(1) The financial statements filed as part of this Report are listed in Part II, Item 8, “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.”

(a)(2) No financial statement schedules are required to be filed as part of this Report because all such schedules have
been omitted. Such omission has been made on the basis that information is provided in the financial statements or
related footnotes in Part II, Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” or is not required to be filed as the

information is not applicable.

(a)(3) The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index are included with this Report.
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Exhibit Index

(Note: References herein to “AMVESCAP,” “AMVESCAP PLC” or “INVESCO PLC” are to the predecessor registrant to
Invesco Ltd.)

Memorandum of Association of Invesco Ltd., incorporating amendments up to and including December 4,
3.1 2007, incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1 to Invesco’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 12, 2007
Amended and Restated Bye-Laws of Invesco Ltd., incorporating amendments up to and including
3.2 December 4, 2007, incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.2 to Invesco’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 12, 2007
Specimen Certificate for Common Shares of Invesco Ltd., incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to Invesco’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 12, 2007
Indenture, dated as of February 27, 2003, for AMVESCAP’s 5.375% Senior Notes Due 2013, among
AMVESCAP PLC, A I M Adyvisors, Inc., A I M Management Group Inc., INVESCO Institutional (N.A.),
4.2 Inc., INVESCO North American Holdings, Inc. and SunTrust Bank, incorporated by reference to exhibit 2.12
to AMVESCAP’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 27, 2003
Indenture, dated as of December 14, 2004, for AMVESCAP’s 5.375% Senior Notes due 2014, among
AMVESCAP PLC, A I M Adyvisors, Inc., A I M Management Group Inc., INVESCO Institutional (N.A.),
4.3 Inc., INVESCO North American Holdings, Inc. and SunTrust Bank, incorporated by reference to exhibit 2.11
to AMVESCAP’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005
Indenture, dated as of April 11, 2007, for AMVESCAP’s 5.625% Senior Notes Due 2012, among
AMVESCAP PLC, A I M Adyvisors, Inc., A I M Management Group Inc., INVESCO Institutional (N.A.),
44 Inc., INVESCO North American Holdings, Inc. and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to AMVESCAP’s Report on Form 6-K, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 18, 2007
Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated as of November 27, 2007, among INVESCO PLC, a public limited
company organized under the laws of England and Wales, and formerly known as AMVESCAP PLC, A1M
Adpvisors, Inc., A I M Management Group Inc., INVESCO Institutional (N.A.), Inc., and INVESCO North
American Holdings, Inc., Invesco Ltd., a Bermuda corporation, and The Bank of New York Trust Company,
N.A., incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 to Invesco’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 30, 2007
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 27, 2007, among INVESCO PLC, a public limited company
organized under the laws of England and Wales, and formerly known as AMVESCAP PLC, A I M Advisors,
Inc., A I M Management Group Inc., INVESCO Institutional (N.A.), Inc., and INVESCO North American
Holdings, Inc., Invesco Ltd., a Bermuda corporation, and U.S. Bank National Association, as Successor
Trustee to SunTrust Bank, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.3 to Invesco’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 30, 2007
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 27, 2007, among INVESCO PLC, a public limited company
organized under the laws of England and Wales, and formerly known as AMVESCAP PLC, A I M Advisors,
Inc., A I M Management Group Inc., INVESCO Institutional (N.A.), Inc., and INVESCO North American
Holdings, Inc., Invesco Ltd., a Bermuda corporation, and U.S. Bank National Association, as Successor
Trustee to SunTrust Bank, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.4 to Invesco’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 30, 2007
4.8 Supplemental Indenture No. 3, dated as of June 9, 2009, for the 5.625% Senior Notes due 2012, among
Invesco Holding Company Limited (f’k/a AMVESCAP PLC), IVZ, Inc., and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.8 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for

4.1

4.5

4.6

4.7
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the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 26, 2010
Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated as of June 9, 2009, for the 5.375% Senior Notes due 2013, among
Invesco Holding Company Limited (f/k/a AMVESCAP PLC), IVZ, Inc., and U.S. Bank National Association,
as successor trustee to SunTrust Bank., incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.9 to Invesco’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 26, 2010

Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated as of June 9, 2009, for the 5.375% Senior Notes due 2014, among
Invesco Holding Company Limited (f/k/a AMVESCAP PLC), IVZ, Inc., and U.S. Bank National Association,
as successor trustee to SunTrust Bank, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.10 to Invesco’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 26, 2010

Guarantee, dated February 27, 2003, with respect to AMVESCAP’s 5.375% Senior Notes Due 2013, made by
A I M Management Group Inc., A I M Advisors, Inc., INVESCO Institutional (N.A.), Inc. and INVESCO
North American Holdings, Inc., incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.20 to AMVESCAP’s Annual Report on
Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 27, 2003
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Credit Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2010, among Invesco Holding Company Limited, IVZ, Inc., Invesco
Ltd., the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders from time to time a party thereto and Bank
of America, N.A., as administrative agent, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to Invesco’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 2, 2010

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2011, among Invesco Holding Company
Limited, IVZ, Inc., Invesco Finance Limited, Invesco Finance, Inc., Invesco Ltd., the banks, financial
institutions and other institutional lenders from time to time a party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as
administrative agent, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10 to Invesco’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23, 2011

Third Amended and Restated Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of August 18, 2003, among Citibank,
N.A., Citicorp North America, Inc., A I M Management Group Inc., A I M Distributors, Inc., A I M Advisors,
Inc. and Invesco Funds Group, Inc., incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to Invesco’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 29, 2008

Amendment No. 4 to Facility Documents, dated as of August 24, 2001 among A I M Management Group
Inc., A I M Adpvisors, Inc., A I M Distributors, Inc., Citibank, N.A., Bankers Trust Company and Citicorp
North America, Inc., incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.4 to AMVESCAP’s Annual Report on Form 20-F
for the year ended December 31, 2001, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4, 2002
Amendment No. 5 to Facility Documents, dated as of August 18, 2003, among Invesco Funds Group, Inc.,

A I M Management Group Inc., A I M Advisors, Inc., A I M Distributors, Inc., Citibank, N.A., Citicorp North
America, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4 to
Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008

Invesco Ltd. 2008 Global Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective February 1, 2009,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.6 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009

Amendment No. 1, effective as of July 30, 2010, to the Invesco Ltd. 2008 Global Equity Incentive Plan, as
amended and restated effective February 1, 2009, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to Invesco’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2010, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 2, 2010

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement - Time Vesting under the Invesco Ltd. 2008 Global Equity
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to Invesco’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2008
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement - Time Vesting under the Invesco Ltd. 2008 Global Equity
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 to Invesco’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 7, 2008
Form of Award Agreement for Non-Executive Directors under the Invesco Ltd. 2008 Global Equity Incentive
Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.11 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 25, 2011

Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global Equity Incentive Plan, effective May 26, 2011, incorporated by reference to
Appendix A to Invesco’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 14, 2011

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement - Time Vesting under the Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global Equity
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.12 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2012
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement - Time Vesting - under the Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global Equity
Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.13 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2012
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Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement - Performance Vesting - under the Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global
Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24,
2012

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement - Performance Vesting - under the Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global
Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.15 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24,
2012

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement - Time Vesting - with respect to Martin L. Flanagan - under the
Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.16 to Invesco’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 24, 2012

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement - Performance Vesting - with respect to Martin L. Flanagan -
under the Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.17 to
Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 24, 2012
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Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement - Time Vesting — Canada (Tranches 1-3) - under the Invesco
Ltd. 2011 Global Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.18 to Invesco’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 24, 2012

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement - Time Vesting — Canada (Tranche 4) - under the Invesco
Ltd. 2011 Global Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.19 to Invesco’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 24, 2012

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement - Performance Vesting — Canada (Tranches 1-3) - under the
Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.20 to Invesco’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 24, 2012

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement - Performance Vesting — Canada (Tranche 4) - under the
Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global Equity Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21 to Invesco’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 24, 2012

Form of Award Agreement for Non-Executive Directors under the Invesco Ltd. 2011 Global Equity Incentive
Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2012

Invesco Ltd. Executive Incentive Bonus Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2009, incorporated
by reference to exhibit 10.7 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009

Invesco Ltd. Amended and Restated 2005 Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, effective as of
January 1, 2009, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.8 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009
No. 3 Executive Share Option Scheme, as revised as of August 2006, incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.6 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008

2000 Share Option Plan, as revised as of January 26, 2005, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.7 to
Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008

Deferred Fees Share Plan, as amended and restated effective December 10, 2008, incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10.13 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on February 27, 2009

Second Amended and Restated Master Employment Agreement, dated April 1, 2011, between Invesco Ltd.
and Martin L. Flanagan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to Invesco’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 29, 2011
Global Partner Agreement, dated November 10, 2005, between AMVESCAP PLC and Loren M. Starr,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008

Global Partner Agreement, dated January 1, 2001, between AIM Funds Management Inc. and Philip A.
Taylor, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.15 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008

Global Partners Employment Contract, dated April 1, 2000, between INVESCO Pacific Holdings Limited and
Andrew Lo, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.17 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 29, 2008

Senior Managing Director Agreement, between Andrew Lo and Invesco Group Services, Inc., effective as of
January 1, 2010, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.32 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2012
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Global Partner Agreement, dated January 3, 2001, between James 1. Robertson and AMVESCAP Group
Services, Inc., incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.16 to AMVESCAP’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
year ended December 31, 2004, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29, 2005
Employment Agreement, dated October 10, 2011, between G. Mark Armour and Invesco Asset Management
Australia (Holdings) Limited, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.34 to Invesco’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 24, 2012

Transaction Agreement, dated as of October 19, 2009, between Morgan Stanley and Invesco Ltd.,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to Invesco’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 20, 2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 30, 2009

Amendment, dated as of May 28, 2010, to Transaction Agreement, dated as of October 19, 2009, between
Morgan Stanley and Invesco Ltd., incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to Invesco’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 2, 2010
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List of Subsidiaries, incorporated by reference to exhibit 21 to Invesco’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24, 2012
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, dated February 24, 2012 (except for Notes 21 and 24 as to which the date is
October 30, 2012)

Certification of Martin L. Flanagan pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Loren M. Starr pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Martin L. Flanagan pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Loren M. Starr pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Invesco Ltd.

/s/ MARTIN L. FLANAGAN

By:

Name: Martin L. Flanagan

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
Date: October 30, 2012
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